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Letter of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board

For BTA the year 2017 was a very successful one and the first whole yaanima\lnsurance Group.

During 2017 BTA changed its visual appearance. By maintaining the eteofetd maritime history BTA
has changed its face to a modern and straight logo, which nowadays@spot across all the Baltic countries.
This new logo is not only a commitment to the VIG family, ibalso maintains the strong brand awareness
of BTA.

The new spirit can also be experienced in the new head offB€A which was opened in Riga in June last
year. This office is designed according to the most modiice standards, it reflects the corporate design
and values of the company, butost important it is designed as an efficient office with paperlessgsees,
convenient communication and quick workflows. This is what makes&8T&dvanced and modern insurance
company in the Baltic States.

The Annual Report proves that 2017 was an excellent yed@TAr The Company has managed to grow
substantially, above the market in all main business lmesto return to healthier price levels in motor
business lines. The financial result for the y&&Ir7 of 8.7 million EUR (before tax) reflects the company’s
risk-conscious policy in a competitive market as well as ianfifal health. The volume of gross written
premiums in the Baltics rose to 163.0 million EUR in 2017 (GWP afteyaibfees). This thriving growth of
24% has strengthened BTA’s position as one of the leading insurance companies in Latvia, Lithuania, and
Estonia with an overall market share of 13% in non-life and healthainee segments.

In the year 2017 BTA also strengthened its market and financitibpesby merging with InterRisk Vienna
Insurance Group. This reorganisation process was succesatattynplished in the 4th quarter of 2017,
making BTA the market leader with the broadest network of @eremd customer service centres, and around
1.000 employees in the Baltic markets.

The Supervisory Board followed with high contentment BTA’s development during 2017. Therefore, towards

the end of the year, the Supervisory Board and the Shdezbdbok a clear stance and decided to invest 10
million EUR of new share capital into the future developneé@TA. | am firmly convinced that BTA will
use these additional funds for further improving and digitej their processes and communication tools for
an excellent customer service and will be further pursuing its groveatiegy.

I would like to thank the Company’s management, all employees and business partners for their hard work and
their trust in what we do. | would like to thank all customers for tnest in BTA.

You are welcome to study the detailed information regardifig Bnd its achievements in 2017 which are
presented in the enclosed Annual Report.

Franz Fuchs
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
BTA Baltic Insurance Company AAS

23 March 2018
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BTA Baltic Insurance Company AAS (hereinaftethe Company) was established in 2014 as a result of
reorganization of BTA Insurance Company SE (Balcia Insurance 8Elalovember 2016). The Company

is the leading insurance company in the Baltics offering tlieestiange of non-life insurance services in
Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia. The Cpany’s largest shareholder is Vienna Insurance Group AG (hereinafter

— VIG), with more than 190 years of experience in the insurancetigdus

About BTA

Upon the reorganization of the Company and the successful chfehgesbareholding structure, the Company
continued its sustainable development in the Baltic markets, aiig the high value and good reputation
of the Company brand, firmly holding on to the existing Company valuktharbasic operating principles
offering high-quality insurance services that meet custonggrireaments, by means of the cutting-edge
technologies employed to promote the Company development, therebipgssability and safe compliance
with the Company’s commitments. The Company’s Management Board represented by the Chairman of the
Management Board Janis Lucaus, Members of the Management Board Oskars Hartmanis, Evija Matveja and
Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmeyer, set forward developmentraintforcement of the Company positions
in the Baltic markets as the Company’s main tasks for the year 2017. The main initiative that wasgly
pushed forward, was the promotion of business developmdastomia and competitiveness in corporate
customer segment. According to the set prioritigsiorities encompassing improvement of customer service
and business processes, the Company continued to focus on the dewméloprimformation technology
project, which contributed to reduction of the Company’s administrative costs and affected positively the
Company financials.

Financials

With high determination to enlarge the costumer segment atdl &uong-lasting product portfolio, the
Company continues to show successful results in 2017. The Coingsugyoss written insurance premiums
of 163 million euros for the Baltic States together in 2012 Vidlume of gross written insurance premiums
increased by 24% in year 2017, as compared to the results of year 2016.

The VIG shareholder engagement and the selected business strimegg éhe Company to considerably
increase the overall business volume in Estonia (+17 %), Lid¢aR9 %) and Latvia (+21 %) as well as to
successfully reinforce its positions in the corporate cust@m®gment, where the volume of gross written
insurance premiums increased by 26 %.

By types of insurance, the steepest growth of grossewritisurance premiums in 2017 was in property
insurance (+31 %), travel accident insurance (+29 %), MTPL (+2T#8CO (+23 %) and health insurance
(+21 %).

Throughout the year the Company could observe the volumess giitten insurance premiums in voluntary
insurance types grow. The demand for voluntary insurance cowaratjieued to grow in all the Baltic States.
The total volume of the Company’s gross written insurance premiums in voluntary insurance types reached
101.5 million euros in 2017, which is by 23% more than in 2016.

Following the growth of the volume of insurance premiunesvibiume of insurance claims, disbursed by the
Company, increased by 3% in 2017 and reached 79.4 million euroLdrhpany disbursed about 315
thousand euros on average every business day in 2017, which hag@eximately 39 thousand euros every
business hour. Insurance claims in 2017 decreased by 14% in GdWParice, by 4% in MTPL and Personal
accident insurance, at the same time increased by 45% in Bresident insurance, by 22% in Health
insurance and by 16% in Property insurance.

Decrease of insurance claims in MTPL are explained by &asein the number of MTPL policies due to
average premium increase, reviewed layout of the cooperatiomavritiges, redirection of clients to ordinary
garages more often when the vehicle’s warranty repair period has expired, and changes in legislation regarding
cash claim payments after deduction of the VAT. The increaseswafance claims in Health and Property
insurance is explained by portfolio growth.

At the end of 2017, the sum of the Company’s gross technical reserves reached 181.0 million euros, while the

net technical reserves made 134.2 million euros. The total value of,egserves and liabilities made 289.2
million euros, which is the highest indicator among Latvissuiance companies and one of the highest
indicators among the Baltic insurers.
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In the reporting year, the Company exercised conservative appgmeatds the investment policy based on
low risk assets. The Company mostly invested in governmentsdehtities having high investment rating
(between A and AAA according to international rating agency Standard & Poor’s classification). The ratio of
such investmentsonstituted 74% of the total volume of the Company’s investments on 31 December 2017.

Insurance market profile

The competition in the Baltic insurance market, particularly inclelmsurance types, remains very high and
intense. The negative trend in MTPL insurance type proceeded in 2QHlvia and Estonia the losses
within the type continued to increase. In 2017, MTPL market it difllion euros loss in Latvia. The increase
of traffic accidents, especially abroad, and car service cdetdsathe increase of MTPL insurance indemnity
disbursement. The losses of MTPL type of insurance affatsiderably the overall financial indicators of
insurance companies. The year 2017 was marked by an increageavetage MTPL premium in Latvia,
Estonia and in Lithuania. Altogether, in 2017, the Company has w&8&dnmillion euros in MTPL gross
written insurance premiums in the Baltics, which is 27 %entioan in the year 2016. The overall increase of
MTPL gross insurance premiums written by the Company waserdrby the promotion of business
development in Estonia as well as increase of business volunthuania and average premium increase in
all three countries.

A positive trend to be noted is the overall growth thiaug the Baltic States in voluntary insurance type
segment. In 2017 the volume of gross written insurance prengiomtisiued to increase rapidly. The Company
has written 101.5 million euros in gross written insurgm@amiums in voluntary insurance segment in the
Baltics, which is 23 % more than in 2016. Voluntary insurance besne more popular not only among
private individuals (+23 %), but also among corporate entities (+23 %).

Continuing the positive trend of voluntary insurance, Progesyrance in 2017 was marked by the largest
increase in gross written insurance premiums. The Companyvti@sn 20.9 million euros in Property
insurance gross insurance premiums in the Baltics, which is 3@r&than in the year 2016. As we compare
the number of private individuals in the Baltic States, who shao purchase all risk property insurance, we
can see an increase in the number of policies in 2017. Intenggetition intrinsic to the insurance market
induces offering conditions that are ever more advantageouwatepindividuals within property insurance
services; thereby the year 2017 was marked by an increase itetomgroperty insurance policies sold. All
around the Baltic States, corporate entities purchase commenajadrty insurance with a more extensive
insurance scope, including equipment breakdown risk, businessuption risk and other risks.

The year 2017 in the Baltic market also was favourable fogriveth of the total volume of travel accident
gross written insurance premiumsn 2017 the Company has written by 29 % more travel accidess g
written insurance premiums in the Baltics than in 2016. Téragany reached a significant 31 % increase of
Personal accident gross written insurance premiums ipedne2017. It proves that both private individuals,
corporate entities and employers consider travel accident insuraneewer more relevant.

Following 2016, the year 2017 was marked positively by an incrédke wolume of CASCO gross written
insurance premiums. The Company has written 39.0 million ewtash is by 23 % more of CASCO gross
written insurance premiums in the Baltics in 2017 than in 20b6. violume of gross written insurance
premiums increased in all three Baltic States. The increadeedbtal volume of gross written insurance
premiums in all three Baltic States was affected by the paioh power of residents, an increase in insurance
significance awareness and by the increase in the number of new caesedgisthe Baltic States.

The volume of health insurance gross written insuranceipnesrin Latvia and Lithuania in the year 2017 has
increased by 21 %, showing that employers more frequenthplement motivation and social guarantee
programme packages for their employees. Employers purchase haatingespolicies as well as expand the
scope of paid services included in these policies.

Major eventsand development

Merger with InterRisk

At the end of 2017, the Company merged with and added theelsasind infrastructure of InterRisk Vienna
Insurance Group in Latvia and Lithuania. As a result, the Company becaauenifethe Baltic market with
the largest network of partners and customer service centressatie Baltics, employing nearly 1000
employees. The transaction strengthened Company’s position in the Baltic insurance market and opened up
opportunities for offering wider services for its clients.
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Compliance with solvency requirements and increase of share capital

After the merger (reorganisation) the Company increaseitdisary share capital by additional 10 million
euros, increasing BTA’s solvency ratio at the year-end well above 125%.

Change of brand identity

In late May, the Company changed the brand identity in &atyithuania and Estonia. The new image of the
Company signals to clients and partners that respongitiélit be easy if a trusted friend is nearby. A friend,
who encourages and supports in achieving life's most impgbar.

Stylistics of the new brand highlights the main valuesedibility, accessibility and humanity. At the same
time it maintains the inherent reliability and stabilityRfA, which is underlined by the company's largest
shareholder Vienna Insurance Group AG.

Accessibility - the company's services are available on any channel throtlgh&altics 24 hours a day.
Humaniy - employees speak to their clients in a human, understandabledgndglihe products of the
company are tailor-made for each client personally and each client can expelitidnahattitude.

Credibility - the Company, with the support of VIG, is a trustadner for responsible decisions.

The Company believes in the development of technology, which prevafised, efficiency and convenience.
Technology, customer base and industry knowledge provide thuetopity to be dynamic and creative. The
Conpany’s success is based on an enthusiastic and professional team.

Business development in Estonia and Lithuania

Through the purposeful development of business in the Bd#gtsyear the most rapid growth was achieved
in Lithuania. The volume of gross written insurance premiumieased by 29% over the year and managed
to gain the highest turnover in the Baltics. Significantly good pssgnas been made in property insurance,
where the increase in total gross written insurance premiums exicéetb.

Stable gain in property insurance is also observed in Estamere the volume of gross written insurance
premiums increased by 17% in 2017.

Business portfolio enforcement

In an effort to improve the portfolio efficiency and to ch®asistainable development scenario in 2017 the
Company has gradually increased MTPL service prices ind,dtéiming a well-balanced insurance portfolio
and price policy matching the actual costs. Thus, the volumeos§ gvritten insurance premiums grew by
21% over a year and was one third higher than the compensation paid.

In an effort to ensure the opportunity to choose a broademimseicoverage based on market trends, customer
requirements and demands in 2017 the Company improved itariesuierms and conditions. In response to
the growing public interest in personal accident insuraheeCompany complemented its personal accident
insurance terms and conditions by including new risks in the cover.

Information technology development

In autumn of 2017 the Company completed the transition toetr@hic management system, becoming a
full-fledged paperless office. It contributed to optiatinn of administrative processes and, at the same time,
ensured business development, reduction of administrative @edtimprovement of operations efficiency.
Now, more than 95 % of the Company documents, including thmep@&ay orders, decisions, contracts,
invoices and other documents are transferred by electronic means.

Customer service improvement

An important breakthrough in customer service improvement wadeteglopment and implementation of
customer self-service portal in Latvia and Estonia. The pemalures a full-fledged customer service
functionality, same as brick and mortar customer service cemtrasugh the intermediary of the portal, the
customers may not only purchase insurance services quicklgoaneniently, but also apply for insurance
indemnities and follow the insurance claim case handling progress.

The Company continued to improve the insurance claims applicattproduct purchase options by means
of distant communication tools. In 2017 the Customer Support Seegestered 99% of the total number of
received insurance claim cases in Latvia. 37% of all the CABS@®ance claim cases and 42% of all the
property insurance claim cases were fast-tracked and handleccioutise of a single or several days.

In Estonia in 2017 the Customer Support Service regist@3é6l of the received insurance claim cases
remotely, and 63% of all the registered CASCO insurance claies ewsre fast-tracked and handled in the
course of a single or several days. Whereas in Lithuania theriersSupport Service registered 98% of the
received insurance claim cases remotely in 2017.
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Alongside with the vigorous growth of distant channels in thed8athe Company is a leading company in
customer facde-face service- it has the broadest network of customer service centreastiieland one of
the broadest networks in Lithuania. The Company has 53 customieessntres in Latvia, and 109 centres
in Lithuania.

Customers highly appreciated the services rendered by the Carttparyidenced by the results of the Praise
Excellent Service campaign 2016. The Company was awarded as an excelanecggrvice company in
financial and insurance industry and was awarded the -ittf&he most recommended company” and “The
most polite service”.

Employees

In an effort to promote professional development of the employees thea@gmprovided 2273 training days
of internal and external training programmes in 2017, adtbtal number of 28 employees in 2017. The
employees were also offered additional professional developmpgon® by means of e-learning system.
Staff loyalty to the Company is evidenced by the length ofleynpent of employees in 2017 it was on
average 5,8 years. BTA also ranked as high as number 10 in thst langeial employee survey of the
recruitment company CV-Online Latvia, which finds out the bedtnaost attractive employers in Latvia, and
BTA was the only one of the insurance field, who made ibitbp chart. The high place in the top chart
suggests that the Company and its selected strategy keep d®yeéfothe right direction in a long-term
perspective, which is welcomed by the staff as well as the public inagene

Risk management

The Company’s risk management system ensures efficient risk identification, measuring and assessment, as
well supervision and control in accordance with the Company lemmg-dtrategic goals, volume of operations
and operational peculiarities.

Risks related to the investments made by the Company are controlled in accordance with the Company’s
Investment and Risk Strategy, which sets limitations on transactions with alsirsijhess partner, as well as
thresholds on credit ratings of debt securities obtainedébZompany. The Company minimizes its liquidity
risk by investing into highly liquid financial instruments.

Market risks include interest rate risk, price risk and curreigty To minimize the impact of risks the
Company constantly improves its risk policy, maintaining a conservativeabpim risk management.

The Company’s outwards reinsurance policy had been significantly improved in 2017, mostly due to new
reinsurance opportunities within VIG. The main changes baea made to MTPL, Aviation, Property and
related products reinsurance structure. New treaties hadapesmged for the additional protection of the
Company’s portfolio. The risk share retained by the Company has been calculated taking into account the
equity amount, business needs as well as internal and VIG guidelines.

Risks are transferred to (re)insurance companies with Aipgaedit ratings, being in line with the
requirements of the Company and its major shareholder VIG.

The Company constantly monitors its capital adequacy and solvency mergirement compliance, as well
as conducts stress testing and assesses the potential effects of adverse factors on the Company’s solvency. The
results of stress tests evidence the ability of the Coynfzameet its obligations towards customers and to
retain financial stability even in case unfavourable events do occur.

Proposal on distribution of profits

Taking into account the Company’s planned development path, the Board recommends that 85% of the net
profit for the financial year 2017 in the amount of EUR 6.624.21,48ocated to pay out dividends and
15% in the amount of EUR 1.167.887,52 to increase the Company’s equity.

Subsequent events
As of the last day of the reporting period until the ddtsigning these financial statements there have been
no events requiring adjustment of or disclosure in the finarteigdreents or notes thereto.

Further development

Despite the fierce competition in the Baltic market, the Compigsgerns a high growth potential in several
types of insurance, voluntary insurance in particular.

Proceeding with improvement of its insurance products artdroes service, the Company plans to increase
the volume of operations in 2018 in the Baltic States, achievioge than 15 % growth in gross written
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insurance premiums total for the Baltic region. The Companyeseig greatest growth opportunities in
Estonia and Latvia, where the increase in gross written insiamemiums is expected to be above 25 %
respectively compared to the year 2017. Given the current insuranceipadfome and market situation in
Lithuania, the Company expects the growth in that country to slow doeomparison to 2017.

The Company plans to strengthen its insurance portfolio, paiveeerith its diversification and reducing the
share of MTPL insurance type. The Company sets higher goals in voluntagnicestypes, such as property
insurance, CASCO insurance and assistance insurance.

Meanwhile the Company is going to proceed with the startéidtines on improvement of processes and
management efficiency in all realms of operations, which dedumprovement of private and corporate
customer service standards and developing online sales.

The Company will further sustain its quick and high-qualitgislen-making, with a particular focus on
improvement of insurance claims handling processes. The Company’s Board is going to enable the
professional development of its staff, meanwhile keeping on imitimovement of its insurances products,
increasing their quality, thus maintaining and improving the Company’s long-term capacity to operate at profit.

On the behalf of the Company’s Board, we hereby thank our employees, our clients and our cooperation
partners for the work accomplished aimed at meeting our common-gbalsk you for your loyalty and trust!

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey Oskars Hartmanis Evija Matveja
Member of board Member of board Member of board

23 March2018
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GROUP COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING /

COMPANY PROFILE

VIENNA INSURANCE GROUF

PART OF VIENNA INSURANCE GROUP

COMPANY PROFILE

»» Wefocus on providing our customersin Austria and CEE with custom products
and services tailored to their needs. Our strategy is geared towards long-term
profitability and steady ear nings growth, making us a reliable partner in rapidly
changingtimes.

Over 25,000 employees work for the Vienna Insurance Group (\AGround 50 companies in 25
countries. We develop insurance solutions in line with persoddbaal needs, which has made us one of
the leaders in the insurance industry in Austria and Central aterE&sirope (CEE).

EXPERTISE AND STABILITY

The Vienna Insurance Group is an international insurarmepgneadquartered in the Austrian capital.
After the fall of the Iron Curtain in 1989, VIG expanded rgpfdom a purely Austrian business into an
international group. VIG is synonymous with stability and etxge in providing financial protection
against risks. The Group’s origins date back to 1824. Almost two centuries of experience, coupled with a
focus on our core competence of providing insurance coverage, &osoigd and secure basis for the
Group’s 20 million-plus customers.

FOCUS ON CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPE

Besides Austria, VIG places a clear emphasis on Central anerfe&strope as its home market. The
Group generates more than half of its premium income in CEE. VIG’s operations are also focused on this
region. This primarily reflects the forecasts for economic gnawtCEE, which is predicted to be twice
as high as in Western Europe, as well as the current leva$wfaince density, which is still well below
the EU average.
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[ )
V,
LOCAL MARKET PRESENCE

For VIG, protecting customers financially against risk i@gponsibility. The Group pursues a multi-
brand strategy based on established local markets as well as local management.

Ultimately, the Group’s success and closeness to its customers is down to the strengths of each
individual brand and local know-how.

STRONG FINCANCES AND CREDIT RATING

VIG has an A+ rating with stable outlook from wkitlewn rating agency Standard & Poor’s, meaning
that it remains the tomted company on the Vienna Stock Exchange’s index of leading shares, the ATX.
The Vienna Insurance Group is listed in both Vienna and Prégieaer Stadtische Versicherungsverein
— a stable core shareholder with a long-term fecugns around 70% of VIG’s shares. The remaining
shares are in free float.
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THE VIG MISSION
STATEMENT

OUR
VISION

We want to be the first
choice for our customers.
Our stakeholders see us
as a stable and reliable
partner. This enables us to
consolidate our position
as the leading insurance
group in Austria, Central
and EasternEurope.

OUR
VALUES

Diversity
Customer proximity
Responsibility

VIG?

VIENMA INSURANCE GROUP

Protecting what matters.

OUR
MISSION

We stand for stability and
competence in the field of
risk protection. We use our
experience, know-how and
diversity to move closer to
our customers. We see it as
our responsibility to protect
the values that matter to our
customers.

OUR|
PROMISE

We enable customers to
live a safer and better life:
Protecting what matters.

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

EMPLOYER BRANDING CORPORATE BEHAVIOUR
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Statement of management responsibility

In 2017 the Board of BTA Baltic Insurance Company AAS (heragnafthe Company) was responsible for
the management of the Company. The Management regularly inform€atineil about key developments
in the Company and provided necessary explanations.

The Management assumes responsibility for the prepardtitie caccounting records, compliance in the
process of recording transactions under the regulative norms apptizalbcounting, safekeeping of the assets
of the Company as well as the prevention of fraud and other dishotieitieac

The Company’s Management assumes responsibility for the preparation of the Company’s financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2017 prepared in accordance R&tatFadopted by the European Union to
reflect fairly the activities and cash flows of BTA Balfiacsurance Company AAS for the year ended
31 December 2017, as well as its financial position as at 31 December 2017.

The Company’s Management confirms that the Company’s financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with the effegtiveements of legislation and the
Financial and Capital Market Commission of the Repulflicatvia, and IFRS as adopted by the European
Union.

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been prepared on the basis of
prudent decisions and assumptions of the Management.

The Company uses exemption rules from the obligation taapeamn-financial statements according to the
Regulations of the Financial and Capital Market Commission No. 201 “Statutory provisions for the preparation

of the annual report and the consolidated annual reportsafénce and reinsurance companies and non-
member country insurers' branches” (paragraph No 16 of the above Regulation) as “Vienna Insurance Group

AG” is publishing a separate consolidated non-financial report for financial year 2017.

The Management confirms that the requirements of Latvian digisland applicable legislation in other
European Union countries have been met and that the financ&hst#s have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Management is not aware of any significant events after thegdamwhich are not reflected in these
financial statements and that might have a material impact ontiastiof the insurance company and the
assessment of the financial statements.

Taking into account that the reorganization, where the Company actnigeRlisk Vienna Insurance Group
AAS, came into force on 27 December 2017, special consideration shall be given to the fact that the Company’s
financial statements contain information related to the closatanbe sheet of InterRisk Vienna Insurance
Group AAS.

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey Oskars Hartmanis Evija Matveja
Member of board Member of board Member of board

23 March 2018
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Financial statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Note
Earned premiums
Written premiums
Gross written premiums 5
Reinsurers’ share in written premiums 5,18
Net written premiums 5
Changein unearned premium and unexpired risk
technical reserves
Gross change 7
Reinsurers’ share 7,18
Changein net unearned premium and unexpired risk
technical reserves 7
Net earned premiums 6
Other technical income, net 8
Paid claims, net
Gross claims paid 9
Paid claims 9
Loss adjustment expenses 9
Recovered losses 9
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 9,18
Net paid claims 9
Changein outstanding claim technical reserve
Change in gross outstanding claim technical reserve 10
Reinsurers’ share 10
Changein net outstanding claim technical reserve 10
Net incurred claims 11
Oper ating (expenses)/ income
Client acquisition costs 12
Change in deferred client acquisition costs 12
Administrative expenses 13
Depreciation and amortisation 19,20,2:
Reinsurance commission income, net 14,18
Change in unearned reinsurance commission 14,18
Net operating expenses
Other technical expenses, net 15

Investment management charges

Interest income 16
Gain/(loss) from financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Gain/(loss) on foreign currency fluctuation

Other income

Other expenses

Profit before tax

Income tax expense 17

Net profit for the period

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
162 979 130 808
(23 416) (6 661)
139 563 124 147
(14 632) (8335)
1355 (151)
(13277) (8486)
126 286 115 661
296 284
(79 399) (77 467)
(81 088) (78959)
(4 720) (4293)
6 409 5785
4 485 1599
(74 914) (75 868)
(19 596) (3687)
9164 (139)
(10432 (3826)
(85 346) (79 694)
(17 013) (13740)
1452 754
(24 my) (21123)
(1112 (1056)
7 459 1457
(296) 2
(33518) (33706)
(147) (603)
(300) (42)
904 1144
769 (92)
(174) (267)
906 457
(975) (592)
8701 2550
(909) (618)
7792 1932
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BTABALTIC INSURANCE COMPANY AAS ANNUAL REPORT FORHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Financial statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Itemsthat are or may bereclassified to profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets - net change in fair value 957 (12)
Other comprehensive income for the period 957 (12)
Total comprehensive income for the period 8749 1920

The accompanying notes on pagégo 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey Oskars Hartmanis Evija Matveja
Member of board Member of board Member of board

23 March 2018
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Financial statements
Statement of Financial Position

Assets 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Note EUR’000 EUR’000
Land and buildings 20 3005 418
Property and equipment 19 1526 731
Intangible assets 21 1777 1642
Investment property 20 446 99
Financial investments
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 22,41 1825 76 210
Held-to-maturity financial instruments 22,41 1781 -
Available-for-sale instruments 22,41 148 805 5026
Deposits with banks 23 3303 1357
Total financial investments 155 714 82593
Inventory 133 31
Receivables from direct insurance activities
Due from policy holders 28 550 18 543
Due from intermediaries 1691 1451
Total receivables from direct insurance activities 24 30241 19 994
Receivables from reinsurance activities 1029 407
Other receivables 25 733 419
Prepaid corporate income tax 30 54 502
Total receivables 32057 21322
Total loans and receivables 32057 21322
Deferred tax asset 29 181 130
Accrued income and deferred expenses
Deferred client acquisition costs 12 8 402 5600
Other accrued income and deferred expenses 1020 472
Total accrued income and deferred expenses 9422 6072
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurers’ share in unearned premiums technical reserves 7,38 19 164 2222
Reinsurers’ share in outstanding claim technical reserve 10,38 32084 6 793
Total assets from reinsurance contracts 38 51 248 9015
Cash and cash equivalents 26 33 562 42 479
Total assets 289071 164 532

The accompanying notes on pagédo 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements
Statement of Financial Position

Equity and liabilities

Note
Equity
Share capital 28
Revaluation reserves 28
Other reserves 1c
Retained earnings
Profit for the period
Total equity
Liabilities
Subor dinated loan
Technical reserves
Technical reserves for unearned premiums and unex
risks 7,38
Outstanding claim technical reserves 10,38
Total technical reserves
Creditors
Direct insurance creditors
Due to policy holders
Due to intermediaries
Total direct insurance creditors
Reinsurance creditors 31
Reinsurers deposits
Taxes and social insurance contributions 30
Other creditors 32
Total creditors
Deferred tax liabilities 29
Provisions 33
Accrued liabilities 33
Unear ned reinsurance commission income 14

Deferred next period income

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
41 609 29 000
1475 371
(1 605) -
3716 2750
7792 1932
52987 34053
1500 -
84029 56 707
101389 56 938
185418 113645
7 040 4136
1035 846
8075 4982
4195 1574
23748 -
881 468
5 540 5 304
42439 12328
- 92
1420 871
3987 2880
1160 663
160 -
236 084 130 479
289071 164 532

The accompanying notes on pagédo 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey Oskars Hartmanis
Member of board Member of board

23 March 2018

Evija Matveja
Member of board
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Financial statements
Statement of Cash Flows

2017 2016
Note EUR’000 EUR’000
Cash flows from oper ating activities
Premiums received in direct insurance 160921 125 180
Claims paid in direct insurance (75 421) (78959)
Payments received from reinsurers 266 3323
Payments made to reinsurers (4 726) (4 326)
Income tax paid 30 (679 (2170)
Obligatory payments 27 (1 764) (2976)
Payments to employees (11 829) (11591)
Payments to intermediaries (12 171) (13740)
Other payments made: (18 107) (17 612)
Other tax paid (9 791) (7712)
Payments to other suppliers (7 789) (7 760)
Other payment made (527) (2 140)
Other payment received - 12628
Total cash flows from operating activities 36 490 11 757
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (1 949) (1281)
Acquisition of investments (170 257) (18351)
Disposal of investments 111553 30173
Investment income received 2230 1144
Net cash acquired as a result of reorganisation 1c 3982 -
Total cash flows from investing activities (54 441) 11685
Cash flows from financing activities
Paid dividends (966) (916)
Share capital increase 10 000 -
Total cash flows from financing activities 9034 (916)
Cash and cash equivalents net increase (8917) 22 526
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 42 479 19953
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 26 33562 42479

The accompanying notes on pagédgo 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey Oskars Hartmanis Evija Matveja
Member of board Member of board Member of board

23 March 2018
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

31.12.2015
Total comprehensive income

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income
Transactions with shareholdersrecorded
directly in equity

Dividends paid
31.12.2016
Total comprehensive income

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income
Transactions with shareholdersrecorded
directly in equity

Share capital increase

Acquired as result of reorganization

Dividends paid
31.12.2017

1c

Share Other Revaluation Retained Total

capital  reserves reserve earnings Equity

Note ~ EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

29 000 383 3 666 33049

- - - 1932 1932

- - 12) - (12)

- - - (916) (916)

29 000 - 371 4682 34053

- - - 7792 7792

- - 957 - 957

10 00C - - - 10 000

2 609 (1 605) 147 - 1151

- - - (966) (966)
41609  (1605) 1475 11508 52987 ( Commented [IK11]: Labots

The accompanying notes on pagédo 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Janis Lucaus
Chairman of the Board

Wolfgang Kurt Wilhelm Stockmey
Member of board

23 March 2018

Oskars Hartmanis
Member of board

Evija Matveja
Member of board
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(1) General information
(a) Principal activities

BTA Baltic Insurance Company AA8he “Company”) is a company domiciled in the Republic of Latvia
(“Latvia”). The Companywas registered m 28 October2014 in Riga, Latvia as a Joint Stock Insurance
Company. The head office is located in Riga, Sporta Stied&epublic of Latvia.

On 10 June 2015 the Company obtained the following insurance licerisgsian

land vehicle insurandg€ASCO);

liability for transport ownership insurance (CMTPL);

health insurance;

fire and natural elements insurance;

other damage to property insurance;

general liability insurance (TPL);

miscellaneous financial losses insurance;

goods in transit insurance;

accident insurance;

assistance (travel) insurance;

railway rolling stock insurance;

ships insurance;

liability for ship ownership insurance;

aircraft insurance;

liability for aircraft ownership insurance;

suretyship insurance

credit insurance;

legal expenses insurance.

The Company operates in Estonia and Lithuania. Business isateddhrough permanent establishments
(branches) within the European Union, and it offers a wedge of non-life insurance products to legal entities
and individuals in the abovementioned insurance lines.

Insurance services are offered through the network of branches,esgendisales points in Latvia, Lithuania
and Estonia

The Company ha& foreign branches in Estonia and Lithuania. The registered address of the branch in
Estonia- Ld6tsa 2B, Tallinn 11415; in LithuaniaV4rsuliskiy skg. 34, LT-05132 Vilnius.

(b) Shareholders
Information on the shareholders:

31.12.2017
Number of shares  Shareholding
Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 377 920 90.83 %
Balcia Insuranc&E 38174 9.17 %
416 094 100 %

31.12.2016
Number of shares  Shareholding
Vienna Insurance Group AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe 261 000 90 %
Balcia Insurance SE 29 000 10 %
290 000 100 %
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(c) Reorganisation

On 19 September 2017, a decision was taken regarding reorganisathohSoBTA Baltic Insurance
CompanyThe reorganisation is performed as a merger by way of takeavere AAS BTA Baltic Insurance
Company is the acquiring company and InterRisk Vienna InsurancgpGAAS, registration number:
40003387032, registered address: Udens iela 12 - 115, Riga, LV-1007, is the acquired company. The
reorganization was enacted effective on 27 December 2017.

As a result of the reorganisation, all property of IntekR¥ienna Insurance Group AAS (assets, liabilities,
rights and obligations) was transferred to AAS BTA Baltisurance Company. The share capital of AAS
BTA Baltic Insurance Company was increasgdEUR 2,609,400All newly issued shares were paid-up by
way of non-monetary contributiaf the net assets of InterRisk Vienna Insurance Group AAStabiebelow
sets out the main categories of assets and liabilities as Be@mber 2017 taken over as a result of the
reorganisation.

EUR’000
Land and buildings 2993
Property and equipment 61
Intangible assets 47
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 19 433
Deposits with banks -
Cash and cash equivalents 3982
Receivables from policy holders 1477
Receivables from intermediaries 764
Reinsurance receivables 145
Other receivables 551
Deferred client acquisition costs 1537
Other next period expense and accrued income 19
Reinsurers’ share in unearned premiums technical reserves 5779
Reinsurers’ share in outstanding claim technical reserve 16 127
Total Assets 52 915
Subordinated loan 1500
Technical reserves for unearned premiums and unexpired risks 12690
Equalisation provision -
Outstanding claims technical reserves 24 855
Direct insurance creditors - policyholders 2731
Direct insurance creditors - intermediaries 92
Reinsurers deposit 7378
Reinsurance creditors 1912
Taxes 1
Other creditors 157
Provisions 96
Deferred next period income 151
Unearned reinsurance commission income 201
Total Liabilities 51 764
Impact of reorganisation on equity positions of the Company:
Share capital 2609
Other reserves (1 605)
Revaluation reserve 147
Net assets taken over asaresult of reorganisation 1151
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(d) Capital increase

On 28 December 2017 the share capital of AAS BTA Baltic Insuranc@&opmwas increasdsy EUR 10,0
million to EUR 41,6 million The purpose of increasing the share capital is to strengthen the Company’s
financial stability. Respectively all newly issued shareseweid up in cash and subscribed by the existing
shareholders.

(2) Basisof preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordédndetevhational Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union, and regulations of the Financial and Capital
Market Commission of the Republic béitvia (“FCMC”) in force as at the reporting date.

The financial statements were authorised for issue bydhedBn 23 MarcR018. The shareholders have the
right to reject the financial statements and request that new fihatatements are prepared and issued.
(b) Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in thousands oE&IR®00), unless stated otherwise.

The functional currency of the Company and its branches in Estoniathndrtia is euro.

() Reporting period

The reporting period comprises the 12 months from 1 Januai/td081 December 201The comparative
period is from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

(d) Basisof measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cosixbapisfer the following items, which
are carried at fair value:

e derivatives,
e other financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value throoihqurloss,
e available-for-sale assets.

(e) Changesin accounting policies
Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accountinggeolaiés Note 3
to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The Company has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, mgjuding
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial applicatidamfaty 2016.

The following guidance with effective date of 1 January 2016 did notdigniéicant impact on these financial
statements:

(i) IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of InterestsJdoint Operations;

(i) IAS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements;

(iii) IAS 16— Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS-3Bitangible Assets;

(iv) IAS 19— Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions;

(v) IAS 27— Separate Financial Statements;

(vi) Annual Improvements to IFRSs.

(f) New Standardsand Interpretations
1.1.1 Standards and interpretations effective in the reporting period

The Company has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, eajuding
consequential amendments to other standards, with the date of initial applicatitenofty 2017.

(i)  Amendments to IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows
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The amendments require new disclosures that help users to evaluate chaligaitities arising from
financing activities, including changes from cash flows and non-cash changes (setetisct of foreign
exchange gains or losses, changes arising for obtaining or losing absmbkidiaries, changes in fair value).
In line with these new amendments, the Company has no impact to Cash flow in 2017

The following guidance with effective date of 1 January 2017 dichawe any impact on these financial
statements:

(i)  Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Taséts for Unrealised Losses
(iii)  Annual Improvements to IFRSs

1.1.2 New Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and irtopeeare effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2017, and have not been applied inipggbase financial statements. Those which
may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Compasydt plan to adopt these standards early.

0] IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) (effective &mmnual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018; to be applied retrospectively with some extoms. The restatement of prior periods is not
required, and is permitted only if information ivadlable without the use of hindsight. Early
application is permitted. The IASB implemented aneadment to IFRS 4 Insurance contracts that
permits insurance companies to apply IAS 39 inst#dBRS 9 until IFRS 17 is implemented in 2021.)

This Standard replaces I1A3, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremextept that the IAS 39

exception for a fair value hedge of an interest rate expasua portfolio of financial assets or financial

liabilities continues to apply, and entities have an accountifigypchoice between applying the hedge
accounting requirements of IFRS 9 or continuing to apply the exibdge accounting requirements in

IAS 39 for all hedge accounting.

Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assetertised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit assl (BVTPL)— are similar to IAS 39, the
criteria for classification into the appropriate measurement category arfcaigty different
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if the followingctwditions are met:

e the assets is held within a business model whose objectivaaidtt assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and,
e jts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to casis fhat are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.

In addition, for a non-trading equity instrument, a company may &eicrevocably present subsequent
changes in fair value (including foreign exchange gains and las€@€)l. These are not reclassified to profit
or loss under any circumstances.
For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, interest revenue, expectedbsseditand foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the sameenas for amortised cost assets. Other gains and
losses are recognised in OCI and are reclassified to profit or lossemogeition.
The impairment model in IFRSreplaces the ‘incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’
model, which means that a loss event will no longer neectdar defore an impairment allowance is
recognised.
IFRS 9 includes a new general hedge accounting model, aiiiets hedge accounting more closely with risk
management. The types of hedging relationshijdér value, cash flow and foreign operation net investment
remain unchanged, but additional judgment will be required.

The standard contains new requirements to achieve, continue andtidise hedge accounting and allows
additional exposures to be designated as hedged items.

Extensive additional disclosures regarding an entity’s risk management and hedging activities are required.
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It is expected that the new Standard, when initially applied, have an impact on the financial statements,
since the classification and the measurement of some of the Company’s financial instruments are expected to
change.

Based on its preliminary assessment the Company, expectshhkttraially all of financial assets classified
as loans and receivables under IAS 39 will continue to be measured asedhootit under IFRS.

At this stage it is still unclear what portion of the Company’s debt securities exactly will be measured at
FVTPL, at FVOCI or amortized cost as this determination weiflehd on the outcome of the business model
test and will be subject to an election to be made by the Compémy @ate of initial application. However,
the Company has made a preliminary assessment of the potential fropactew standards and does not
expect the new standards to have significant impact on the financial statements.

Following the decision of Vienna Insurance Group as a group to nsakefuhe temporary exemption and
postpone application of IFRS 9 until 1 Janu2@¢ 9 the Company does not plan to adopt this standard until 1
January2019

(i)  IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers ¢gffe for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted)

The new Standard provides a framework that replaces existing eeraagnition guidance in IFRS. Entities
will adopt a five-step model to determine when to recogrésenue, and at what amount. The new model
specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as)igntramisfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the entity expects to beeentidlepending on whether certain criteria are
met, revenue is recognised:

e over time,in a manner that depicts the entity’s performance; or
e ata pointin time, when control of the goods or services is transferieel tastomer.

IFRS 15 also establishes the principles that an entity spaly to provide qualitative and quantitative
disclosures which provide useful information to useffinaincial statements about the nature, amount, timing,
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a etustom

Although it has not yet fully completed its initial assessnanthe potential impact of IFRS 15 on the
Company’s financial statements, management does not expect that the new Standard, when initially applied,
will have material impact on the Company’s financial statements. The timing and measurement of the
Company’s revenues are not expected to change under IPRScause of the nature of the Company’s
operations and the types of revenues it earns.

(i) IFRS 16 Leases (effective for annual periods beagimon or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application
is permitted if the entity also applies IFRS 15)

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related interprstaliba Standard eliminates the current dual
accounting model for lessees and instead requires compariesg most leases on-balance sheet under a
single model, eliminating the distinction between operating arashée leases.

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveymgtieo control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration. For suclraxis, the new model requires a lessee to
recognise a rightf-use asset and a lease liability. The rightise asset is depreciated and the liability accrues
interest. This will result in a front-loaded pattern ghemse for most leases, even when the lessee pays constant
annual rentals.

The new Standard introduces a number of limited scope exceptionssideghich include:
e leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no purchase options, and
e leases where the underlying asset has a low value (‘small-ticket’ leases).

Lessor accounting shall remain largely unaffected by the introduction of the new 8tandhe distinction
between operating and finance leases will be retained.

It is expected that the new Standard, when initially applied, will havepact on the financial statements,
since it will require the Company to potentially recognise in @estent of financial position some assets and
liabilities relating to operating leases for which the Company acts aza.less
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(iv) Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and MeasurénwhShare-based Payment Transactions
(effective for annual periods beginning on or affedanuary 2018; to be applied prospectively. Early
application is permitted)

The amendments clarify share-based payment accounting on the following areas:

o the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measuremeaisiosettled share-based
payments;

e share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withhaldobligations; and

e a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based paymettiahges the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity settled.

The Company expects that the amendments, when initially applied, whianeta material impact on the

presentation of the financial statements of the entity becauseothpany does not enter into share-based

payment transactions.

(v) Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financialttnsents with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2021; to be applied prospectively)

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing IFRS @ ipgdgmenting the replacement
standard that the IASB is developing for IFRS 4. The amendments intrbeaagptional solutions. One
solution is a temporary exemption from IFRS 9, effectively mliefg its application for some insurers. The
other is an overlay approach to presentation to alleviate the vylétidit may arise when applying IFRS
before the forthcoming insurance contracts standard.

The Company, as an insurance provider, intends to apply the exemption from adoptifg IFRS

(vi) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contrdsutif assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture (effective date has not yet beetetmined by the IASB, however earlier adoptiopasmitted.)

The Amendments clarify that in a transaction involving an associatabv@mture, the extent of gain or loss
recognition depends on whether the assets sold or contributed comshitigimess, such that:

e afull gain or loss is recognised when a transaction between an inaedtids associate or joint venture
involves the transfer of an asset or assets which constitute a businesgi(hetihoused in a subsidiary
or not), while

a partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction between awirarg$tits associate or joint venture
involves assets that do nminstitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

The Company does not expect that the amendments, when initially applidthweilmaterial impact on the
financial statements as the Company has no subsidiaries, associates enjoirsv

(vii) Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tasdts for Unrealised Losses (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018; tajpelied prospectively)

The amendments clarify how and when to account for deferred tax assets in certzmsiaunal clarify how
future taxable income should be determined for the purposesskassthe recognition of deferred tax assets.

The Company expects that the amendments, when initially applied, whiaweta material impact on the
presentation of the financial statements of the Company because the Caingaty measures future taxable
profit in a manner consistent with the Amendments.

(viii) Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Propgffective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018; to be applied prospectively)

The amendments reinforce the principle for transfers into, orf putvestment property in IAS 40 Investment
Property to specify that such a transfer should only be m&aa there has been a change in use of the
property. Based on the amendments a transfer is made when and only whéhdheactual change in use

i.e. an asset meets or ceases to meet the definition ofrirergsproperty and there is evidence of the change
in use. A change in management intention alone does not support a transfer.

The Company does not expect that the amendments will have a material amglhetfinancial statements
because the Company transfers a property asset to, or freestment property only when there is an actual
change in use/the entity does not have investment property.

26




BTABALTIC INSURANCE COMPANY AAS ANNUAL REPORT FORHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

(ix) IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and AdvagGomsideration (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The Interpretation clarifies how to determine the date of #ires#iction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asg@En®x or income (or part of it) on the

derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liadilging from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. In such circumstances, the dateti@rtbaction is the date on which an

entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or nonetary liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration.

The Company does not expect that the Interpretation, when initiallyeelpplill have material impact on the
financial statements as the Company uses the exchange rate on the oradsaetior the initial recognition
of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arisimgnfrthe payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment&e(ive for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019, not yet adopted by the EU)

The Company does not plan to adopt above mentioned standards early. HenZbas assessed the potential
impact from new standards and does not expect the new standards to hexied mgtact on the financial
statements.

(xi)  Annual Improvements to IFRSs

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle were issued on 8 Pecetil6 and introduce two
amendments to two standards and consequential amendments to other standardpratationsrthat result
in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement pufaobesapplication is permitted.

None of annual improvements and amendments to IFRRSs are expected to haifee@ansignpact on the
financial statements of the Company.

(xii) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for annwalquls beginning on or after 1 January 2021, not
yet adopted by the EU)

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which was brought in as an interim Stand2064. IFRS 4 has given companies
dispensation to carry on accounting for insurance contracts using naienahting standards, resulting in a
multitude of different approaches.

IFRS 17 solves the comparison problems created by IFRS 4 by requirirsyigdince contracts to be accounted
for in a consistent manner, benefiting both investors and insurang@pi@s. Insurance obligations will be
accounted for using current values, instead of historical Hestmanagement does not expect material impact
on the financial result of the Company.

The Company is planning to implement IFRS 17 for statutorgrsigits and group consolidation starting from
1 January 2019 based on Vienna Insurance Group guidance.

(0) Reclassification of balancesin thefinancial statements

In addition, certain balances for 20%#re classified differently from the prior year, due to management’s
judgment. The reclassification has no impact on the financial resultcdrhparative information for 2016
disclosed in theefinancial statements was classified in line with the principtesin 2017 and is comparable.
The opening balances before reclassification agree with the prior year cldsincelsa

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Foreign currency

Foreign exchange transactions are translated to the functiorethcynf the Company in accordance with the
exchange rate set by the European Central Bank on the date of the resgettactitm.
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Monetary assets and liabilities, including commitments and centgigs denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated into functional currency in accordance tiithexchange rate set by the European Central
Bank on the last date of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreigermcy that are measured at fair value or cost are
translated at the exchange rate as at the date fair value or cost wagmedterm

Foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
usbD 1,19930 1,05410
PLN 4,17700 4,41030
RUB 69,3920C 64,3000C
GBP 0,88723 0,85618
NOK 9,84030 9,08630

Profit or loss relating to fluctuations in the exchange ratassets and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currencyis recognised in the profit or loss.

3.2 Insurance contracts
(a) Classification of insurance contracts

An insurance contract signed by the insurer is classifiad asurance contract only if it transfers a significant
insurance risk from the policy holder to the insurer. All cacts concluded are classified as non-life insurance
contracts and the Company does not conclude any investment contracts.

Non-life insurance contracts include the contracts:

- in which the insurer assumes substantial insurance riskhaifloé the other contracting partythe
policy holder, by agreeing to compensate losses to the pdudickers if a certain unexpected future
event (insured occurrence) has been previously agreed, which adverselithpauilicy holder. An
unexpected future event is considered to be a situation wiientahe of signing the insurance contract
is not known:

1. whether the insured occurrence will occur;
2. when it will occur;
3. how much the insurer will have to pay if it occurs.

- in which the insured event is the discovery of a loss duhiegdrm of the contract, even if the loss
arises from an event that occurred before the inception of thexcthnt

- inwhich the insured event is an event that occurred durirtgrimeof the contract, even if the resulting
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term;

- which comprise events, which have already occurred, but whasecfal impact is not yet fixed. For
example, reinsurance contracts that protect direct énstom the adverse development of claims
already reported by the policy holder;

- which require or permit payment in kind, e.g., the insuregctly replaces a stolen thing rather than
compensates the claim to the policy holder in money;

- which stipulate a fixed charge services, in which the serl@vel depends on an unexpected event.
Fixed charge services are based on the number of expectpdheqtimalfunctions, but it cannot be
determined on whether some specific equipment will not function;

- in which one insurer (reinsurer) compensates the lossaseobr several contracts closed with other
insurers (assignor).

Recognition and evaluation of insurance contracts

A contract, which is deemed to be an insurance contract, remainsuaance contract, until all rights and
liabilities are paid off or their validity period haspésed. A contract, if in form and substance an insurance
contract, may not be reclassified to another contract.

When classifying insurance contracts for accounting purposes, theibabe substance of transfer of
insurance risk and common signs of possible risk. For example:

- insurance of persons against personal accidents

28




BTABALTIC INSURANCE COMPANY AAS ANNUAL REPORT FORHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

- travel insurance

- insurance against property damage or thefts
- motor vehicle insurance

- general third party liability (TPL) insurance

Each of these contract groups may be divided in more detddking into account the substance of the
transferred insurance risk.

(b) Insurance premium and premium income

Written premiums are insurance premiums for the insurance contigroésl sluring the reporting period, that
have come into force in the reporting period irrespectiliether these premiums have become due or not.
Premiums written are decreased by premiums cancelled and tedvdnaiteg the reporting period. Premiums
are disclosed gross of commission payable to intermediariesxahatie taxes and levies based on premiums.

The earned portion of premiums received is recognised as rev@rmiums are recognised as earned on a
pro-rata basis over the term of the related policy coverage and aredep®earned premiums.

The unearned portion of premiums is recognised as an unearned prectimidl reserves

Ceded reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expenserofaace with the pattern of reinsurance
service received and the portion of reinsurance premiumbutdtble for future periods are recognised as
assets under the reinsurance part of the unearned premium reserve.

(c) Unearned premium and unexpired risk reserves

Unearned premium reserves (UPR)

Unearned premium reserves represent the proportion of premititten which relate to the period of risk
subsequent to the reporting period. Reserves are calcutatedch insurance policy under the 368ay Pro
Rata Temporis method based on the period in force for a particuley.poli

Unexpired risk reserve (URR)

Unexpired risk reserve (URR) is set aside for unexpigdd arising from general insurance contracts where
the expected value of claims and expenses attributable tnéxpired periods of policies in force at the
reporting period end date exceeds the unearned premiums reserveadn telatich policies.

(d) Claimsincurred

Claims incurred from insurance activities are claims attribeitetothe reporting period and consist of claims
paid in the financial period, the corresponding claim hiagdixpenses (loss adjustment expenses) and changes
in the claim reserves. Claims paid are decreased by the anfdasses recoved through cession, sales of
salvage, or subrogation. Recovered losses are recognised on a cash Ivefisywae recovered.

The claims amounts recoverable under reinsurance contracts essealsen each reporting period end date.
The value of those assets decrease if due to an evenyjsebs® initial recognition there is objective evidence
that the Company will not be able to recover all amounts,lasevent has a reasonable measurable impact
on the amounts receivable by the Company from the reinsurer.

(e) Outstanding claim technical reserves

Outstanding claim technical reserves comprise reserves for the Company’s estimate of the ultimate cost of
settling all claims incurred but unpaid at the period esmi# évhether reported or not, and the related internal
and external claims handling expenses. Reserves outstandingptadiscounted, with the exception of
annuities which may arise from third part liability insurance.

Reported but not settled claims reserve (RBNS)

The RBNS claims reserve is calculated on a tgsesse basis by the Company’s loss adjusters for claims
reported and not yet settled (including loss adjustment expeasasthe reporting date.

Incurred but not reported claims reserve (IBNR)

Starting from 2017 gross and net IBNR is calculated and diiterbetween them is considered as reinsurance
part of IBNR reserves. Both, gross and netIBNR resesvesalculated separate for InterRisk portfolio and
BTA portfolio and later counted together.
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For BTA portfolio gross and net reserves for are calculaséty statistical methods (triangulation, coefficient
methods or modifications thereof) for the following lines of iasge:

motor own damage insurance;

property insurance (fire risks);

health insurance;

motor compulsory third party liability insurance.

The accuracy of such claims reserves is assessed by rastoff performed by the actuary of the Company.
A triangulation and loss rate method was used in the calculaitite IBNR reserve for motor compulsory
third party liability.

Where available statistics are considered to be insuffj@em lack of historical data, the both IBNR reserves
are calculated as maximum from a percentage of premiums (5%@nirittast 12 months for the following
lines of business or at least 1 500 EUR or from triangle:

e marine insurance;

e voluntary motor third party liability insurance;
e marine third party liability insurance;
¢ legal expenses insurance;

e railway insurance;

e aircraft insurance;

e aircraft third party liability insurance;
e property insurance (other risks);
L]
L]
L]
L]
L]
L]
L]

personal accident insurance;

travel accident insurance;

guarantee insurance;

general third party liability;

cargo insurance;

various financial risks;

credit insurance.
The both IBNR reserves for InterRisk portfolio are calcdaimsing statistical methods (triangulation,
coefficient methods or modifications thereof) for the followlings of insurance:

e motor own damage insurance;
e travel insurance;
e motor compulsory third party liability insurance.
The accuracy of such claims reserves is assessed by riastoff performed by the actuary of the Company.
A triangulation and loss rate method was used in the calculattittre IBNR reserve for motor compulsory
third party liability.
Where available statistics are considered to be insuffj@en lack of historical data, the both IBNR reserves
are calculated as maximum from a percentage of premiums (5%gnairittast 12 months for the following
lines of business or at least 1 500 EUR or from triangle:
e property insurance (fire risks);
e health insurance;
e voluntary motor third party liability insurance;
e personal accident insurance;
e guarantee insurance;
e general third party liability;
e cargo insurance;
o various financial risks;
e credit insurance.
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(f) Reinsurance

Ceded (outwards) reinsurance

The Company cedes risks into reinsurance limiting its potergtdoss trough the diversification of the risks.
Assets, liabilities and income and expense arising fromdcegiesurance contracts are presented separately
from the related assets, liabilities, income and expense tihenrelated insurance contracts because the
reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direettioiniggto its policyholders.
Reinsurance assets include the recoveries due from (r@egucompanies in respect of claims paid and the
reinsurance share in the technical insurance reserves.

The reinsurance share of the incurred but not repori@dhltechnical provision in the case of non-
proportional or proportional facultative reinsurance contractstisecognised for ceded reinsurance contracts
as the reinsurance asset cannot be reliably measured.

Reinsurance commissions and profit participations includergéssions received or receivable from reinsurers
and profit participations based on the reinsurance contracts. fdoriisurance commissions are deferred in
a manner consistent with the deferral of acquisition costs in non-lifeaimse.

(g) Client acquisition costs

Client acquisition costs include commissions paid to intdianes and other expenses related to the
acquisition of insurance policies.

Deferred client acquisition costs, primarily consisting ofrmtediary commissions are deferred to the extent
that they are recoverable out of future premiums and are recognised as egpentss life of the insurance
policies.

(h) Allocation of administration expenses among cost centres and insurance types

The allocation of administrative expenses to claims cdgst acquisition costs and investment costs is based
on the expenses incurred in different cost centres.

Administration expenses, which are not directly referrechta specific type of insurance, are distributed
among types of insurance mostly in proportion to the volume of tiss gremiums written.

(i) Claimstechnical reserves

Forecast inflation and discount rates are one of the key assampsied in the estimates of the claims technical
reserves. Every year the Company evaluates the adequacy of ibsiprgar provisions by preparing run-off
tests. Additionally sensitivity of main assumptions is checBatbw are the results of sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2017 for economic inflation:

EUR’000 Projected annual inflation Projected annual inflation
increased by 1% decreased by 1%

Increase/ (decrease) in insurance technici

reserves (including annuities) 1200 (19698

(i) Insurance receivables and payables

Amounts due to and from policyholders, agents and reinsurefmaneial instruments and are included in
insurance receivables and payables, and not in insurance contrasibpeogr reinsurance assets.

3.3 Financial instruments
(a) Classification

At inception, all financial instruments are classified into one of theviolg categories:

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets or liabilities that are acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling gouechasing in the near term; or that are part of a partfol

of identified financial instruments that are managed togethefioamhich there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or that are a derivatasecépt for a derivative that is a designated and
effective hedging instrument); or that are upon initigogmition, designated by the entity as at fair value
through the profit or loss. These include groups of firdrassets designated at fair value through profit and
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loss which are managed and performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented investment strategy and information about the Compamallytem that basis is provided to
key management personnel.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deilealsle payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables inclaas, |Joerm deposits with banks and debtors in the
statement of financial position. Insurance receivables are classifileid category.

Available-for-sale instruments are those financial assets that are designated as avadelskeld or are not
classified as loans and receivables, heldiaturity instruments or financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost represent financial liabilities of the Company other than
financial instruments designated at fair value through profibss. This category includes due to creditors
balances.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in thtesnent of financial position at their fair value.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices or dismbwash flow models as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is posithasdiabilities when negative.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are includetttrgains and losses on financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomey @opéue contractual rights of the
instrument. All regular way purchase and sales of financial assetscagised in the statement of financial
position on the transaction date representing the date \kieefinaincial asset is delivered. In the period
between the dates of transaction and settlement, the Company adootim: changes in the fair value of the
received or transferred asset based on the same prinaged for any other acquired asset of the respective
category.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to reasiedlows from the financial asset have expired
or where the Company has transferred substantially allaisksewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when they are extinguisheldat is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(c) Initial and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair valod except for financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss include directly attributable transactionscost

Subsequent to initial measurement, all financial assets and iggbilesignated at fair value through profit or
loss and all available for sale financial assets are measuredwatif@ except those instruments for which no
reliable fair value measurement is possible. In this case,issithments are carried at cost less transaction
expenses and impairment.

All financial liabilities other than financial liabilitieslesignated through profit or loss and all loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effectrestinéée method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discdbatestimated future cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or liabiiten calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates future cash flows considering all contiaetunas of the financial instruments, but not
future credit losses.

All instruments, excluding investments at fair value through profitlass, are subject to revaluation when
impaired.

Profit or loss arising from changes to the fair value of fiferinstruments designated through profit or loss
is recognised in the profit or loss. Differences arising fadranges to the fair value of available for sale
financial instruments are recognised through other comprehensiveén except for impairment which is
recognised in profit or loss. For financial assets andlitiasi carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is
recognized in the profit or loss when the financial asset oritialsiderecognized.
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3.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell art asggaid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement dateimdijgal, or in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Company has access at that @atair Talue of a liability reflects its
nonperformance risk.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with repélse measurement of fair values. This
includes a valuation team that has overall responsibilitgpferseeing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Chieduficial Officer.

Specific controls include:

Verification of observable pricing;

Regular re-performance of model valuations;

A review and approval process for new models against obsew@ntransactions;

Analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;

Review of significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments amélcsigt changes to the fair value
measurement of Level 3 instruments compared to previous month.

The methods described below have been used for the detéomioiafair values.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instruraetitial recognition is the transaction price, i.e.,
the fair value of the consideration given or received, unless theafaie of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions tidttsame instrument (i.e., without
modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technidwesevvariables include only data from
observable markets. When the transaction price provides thevi@snce of fair value at initial recognition,
the financial instrument is initially measured at the transagtime and any difference between this price and
the value initially obtained from a valuation model is sgpently recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income depending on the individual facts and cirawestaf the transaction but not later
than when the valuation is supported wholly by observabl&ehdata or the transaction is closed out.

When applicable, the Company measures the fair value of an instrusirentjuoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transacfmmthe asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing informatoran ongoing basis.
Valuation techniques include recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of othdrungents that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analyses and option pricing models. The chosenigalti@thnique makes maximum use of market
inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates speoifice Company, incorporates all factors that market
participants would consider in setting a price, and is consigiiimtaccepted economic methodologies for
pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques redpmepresent market expectations and
measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the finamsalument. The Company calibrates valuation
techniques and tests them for validity using prices fotwservable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data. Whebgattty information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, are used to measure fair vhRI€ompany assesses and documents the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusiahghch valuations meet the requirements of IFRS
as adopted by EU. This includes:
* Verifying that equity broker or pricing service is approvedhi®y@€ompany for use in pricing the relevant
type of financial instrument;
e Understanding how the fair value has been arrived at anektkat to which it represents actual market
transactions;
e When prices for similar instruments are used to measure faie,uabw these prices have been adjusted
to reflect the characteristics of the instrument subject to measotem

For further analysis of basis for fair value and fair valagnination principles are disclosed in Note 20
(Land and buildings and Investment property) and Note 41 (Faie @dlfinancial instruments).
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, tragany uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different lemedsfair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicatasdétbilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Levieallare observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on alidermarket data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asseliavility might be categorized in different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is categorizisdeintirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the emtiasurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair Mahaechy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

3.5 Impairment
(@) Financial assets

At each reporting period end date the Company assesses whether thgretigeoevidence that the financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss geained. Financial assets are impaired when objective
evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after theeioggnition of the asset, and that the loss
event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that can beedstaiiibly.

Insurance receivables that are overdue are reversed againstrpiiegome once the policy is cancelled. No
impairment allowances are recognised in respect of amounts that hae¢ betome due if no portion of the
premium is taken to income. Receivables are disclosed net ofingraiallowance. The amount of allowance
represents the difference between the gross and recoverable ameaeiadbles.

Other debtors are stated at the recoverable amount. Impaieth@ntinces are recognised on doubtful
receivables.

(b) Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets, other than deferred taxes and e@faoquisition costs, are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications of impairment. In the presence of suctermgd the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the related asset. The recoverable amownt-fihancial assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assesaling W use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discatethat reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Fassat that does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable aima@términed for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised wberatrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

All impairment losses in respect of non-financial assetsem@gnised in the profit or loss and reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to betah® recoverable amount. Any impairment loss
reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined, net of depreciation or aaioti, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

3.6 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are disclosed at cost less accumdégaietiation and impairment. Depreciation is
calculated using a linear method over the entire useful life akepective asset in order to write their value
down to the residual value at the end of the useful life basésedfollowing rates:

Office equipment 20% per year
Computers, electrical equipment 33% per year
Vehicles 20% per year
Buildings for own use 5% per year
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Land and buildings used for the Company’s operating activities are initially stated at cost. Subsequently
buildings for own use are carried at a revalued amount, beirigithelue at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulaiechénplosses. Land is not depreciated
and is carried at a revalued amount, being the fair value at the fdegeatuation less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An increase of value resulting from revaluationrésognised under “Revaluation reserves” in Other
comprehensive income. Valuations are regularly, at least onceciar8, garried out by independent external
certified valuators. If the fair value of land and builgs used for operating activities at the reporting period
end date is lower than their book value, they are re-mehatitiee lower value. The decrease of value resulting
from revaluation is first used to reverse the revaluatésenve of the same asset previously recognised in
“Revaluation reserve$and only if in excess of it, the revaluation decrease is recognized in the profit or loss.

The fair values are based on market values, being the estiamateoht at which a property could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willingybr and willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing. An external independent valuation expert, having aymé&sed professional qualification and
experience, values each investment property in order tetreilerket conditions at the reporting period end
date.

Maintenance costs of property and equipment are recognisieel mofit or loss as incurred. Costs of capital
repairs of property and equipment (leasehold improvements) are tdihe value of the respective asset and
written off over the useful lifetime of the asset. Capigglair costs on leased property and equipment are
written off on a straight line basis during the shorter of the uifiime of the capital repairs and the period
of lease.

Profit or loss from disposal of property and equipmentalculated as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and income generated from sale, andegk#ecprofit or loss in the profit or loss when
disposed.

When revalued fixed assets are disposed, the related revaluaéiorerisstransferred to retained earnings.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are relaweally.

3.7 Intangible assets

Software licences

Software licences are capitalised. Software licences are recadamst including acquisition and
implementation costs less accumulated amortisation and impairAmitisation is calculated using the
linear method over the entire useful life of the respectigetas order to write their value down to the
estimated residual value at the end of the useful life based on ae2Qfap rate.

3.8 Investment property

Land and buildings held either to earn rental income orcémital appreciation or both are classified as
investment property and are measured at cost less accumulated depranimpairment

Land and buildings held either to earn rental income océpital appreciation are initially stated at cost.
Subsequently buildings recognised as investment propertpared at a revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depmeaiati subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Land is not depreciated and is carried at agéwahount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Transfers to or from investment property are made when there is a chaisge in

When an item of land and buildings is transferred to investrproperty following a change in its use, any
differences arising at the date of transfer between tingimgiamount of the item immediately prior to transfer
and its fair value is recognised directly in other comprehensive ingdniea gain.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is gfitas as property and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost for subsecoentiag.
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3.9 Leases

The lease of property and equipment is classified asaade lease if it transfers substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. Title does not have tmabsferred. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. In the reporting period the Company has pelgting lease agreements.

e The Company as a lessor

Rental income from an investment property leased out undeeaating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over each lease term.

e The Company as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised in the profit oofossstraight-line basis over the lease term.
Discounts received are recognised in the profit or loss as a sigh@srof the total lease expenses.

3.10 Corporate income tax
(A) Current tax

In the reporting year

Current tax for the reporting year is the expected taalgayon the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date (15%8a<&cember 2017), and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Changes to the calculation of Corporate Income Tax as of 1 January 2018

As of 1 January 2018, the new Law on Corporate Income TehedRépublic of Latvia comes into effect,
setting out a conceptually new regime for paying taxes. Alseoflate, the tax rate will be 20% instead of the
current 15%, the taxation period will be one month instead of a year arcdéetbase will include:

— distributed profit (dividends calculated, payments equivalent toetidis, conditional dividends) and

— conditionally or theoretically distributed profit (non-opéng expenses, doubtful debts, excessive
interest payments, loans to related parties, decrease of income aivexeapenses which are incurred by

entering into transactions at prices other than those on the nbdteshould be calculated using the

methodology determined by the Cabinet of Ministers, benedgtolved by the non-resident upon its staff or
board (council members) regardless of whether the recepviriyg is a resident or a non-resident, if they relate
to the operation of a permanent establishment in Latvia, liquidatioa)quot

The use of tax losses carried forward from previous perlitaited: it will be possible to utilise these losses
to decrease the amount of tax calculated on dividends in the reportiog) [penot more than 50%. It will be
possible to carry forward unused tax losses and utilese thh the previously described manner only until
2022.

(B) Deferred tax

In accordance with the Annual Reports and Consolidated Aridejabrts Law of the Republic of Latvia,
companies are permitted to recognise deferred tax supporjedtified reasons. In such cases, deferred tax
should be recognised, assessed and disclosed in the firdatatents in line with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. Un@&LPAncome taxes, whenever there is a difference
to tax rates being applied to distributed and undiseibpirofits deferred tax assets and liabilities should be
recognised by applying the rate applicable to undistributed profits.
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The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilitiee veversed and changes were charged to profit
or loss in the reporting period.

(C) Contingent assets that derive from the Wation of the Company’s Corporate Income Tax for periods
prior to 31 December 2017.

The Company’s for 2017 presents tax losses brought forward from reorganisation in the amount of EUR 7,6
millions as at 31 December 2017. In accordance with the new @tegacome Tax Law referred to above,
the Company will be able to utilise these losses toedse up to 50% of corporate income tax calculated on
dividends payable exclusively from profit for 2018-2020 aistributed as dividends by the end of 2022, as
well as from profit for 2022 which will be distributed as extraordirdividends in 2022.

Moreover, as at 31 December 2017 provisions of EUR 7,6 millions wergnised, for the amount of which
the Company is eligible to decrease the base taxable witbrategncome tax in future taxation periods if
certain regulatory provisions are met.

The potential benefits described above as at 31 Decembett2@tiiay arise from the potential possibility to
decrease the amount of tax in the future are treated as contingent assetsremidecognised on the balance
sheet.

Tax relief

A corporate income tax relief has been applied due to amdongted to budget institutions, and public,
cultural, science, sports, charity, health and environment protection otgarigegistered in Latvia, as well
foundations and religious organisations which are permittaddept donations in accordance with Article 20
of the law “On Corporate Income Tax”.

3.11 Cash and cash eguivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cemgsis in hand, demand deposits, overnight
deposits and term deposits with banks with the initial ritgtierm of less than three months. In the statement
of cash flows, cash flows are presented using the direct method

3.12 Dividends
Dividends are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings iartbé jm which they are declared.

3.13 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits, including salaries and socialityecantributions, bonuses and vacation
benefits are included in net operating expenses on an abesislas the services are provided. The Company
pays fixed social security contributions to State SociabFon behalf of its employees during the employment
period in accordance with local legal requirements and wilbmo obligations to pay further contributions
relating to employee services in respect of retired employees.

3.14 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, trap@ny has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is prob#ize an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

3.15 Related parties

Related parties represent both legal entities and privatédnélis related to the company in accordance with
the following rules.

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
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i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

i) has significant influence over the reporting entity;

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reportityerdf a parent of the reporting
entity.

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the followingditons applies:
i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the gaoup (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other gotitgn associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity isstiase of the third entity.

v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benéfimployees of either the reporting
entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If thporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting .entity

vi)  The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identifre¢h).

vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influenogepthe entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

viii) The entity, or any member of a group to which the entity belormsdes management personnel
services to the entity or to the parent of the entity.

Related party transaction - a transfer of resources, serviagsligations between a reporting entity and a
related party, regardless of whether a consideration is determined

3.16 Significant accounting estimates and judgement in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IBR@dopted by the EU requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect ticatégpof policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, the actual results ultimaglgiffer from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revieweth @amgoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period, in which the estisagvised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the remisifects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:
Insurance technical reserves

The nature of the business makes it difficult to priedith certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessedeparate, cabg-case basis with
due regard to the claim circumstances, information availatre lfsss adjusters and the historical evidence of
the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewedarbgahd are updated as and when new information
arises. The provisions are based on information currendlijable. However, the ultimate liabilities may vary
as a result of subsequent developments. The reserve estinitiibniftids also differ by class of business due
to claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individeslerity of claims, determining the occurrence
date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The most judgemental estimation is related to incurreeibateported reserves (IBNR). The key assumptions
in respect of sufficiency of insurance technical reservesnanitored regularly through claims reserves run-
off analyses and liability adequacy testing, performed for each lipesifiess.

Valuation of investment property, buildings andddar own use
Investment property is stated at its fair value with all changes in fair redoeded in the profit or loss

Land and hildings used for the Company’s operating activities are carried at a revalued amount, being its fair
value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accundgtestiation and subsequent accumulated
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impairment losses. Revaluation result is attributed to Giveprehensive income unless impairment should
be recognised.

When measuring the fair value of the investment property ardirigs for own use, the management
commissions external valuations, but critically assesses tabiligl of such valuations in light of the current
market situation.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, or those amounts that are overdueydric¢b there are indications of impairment are

assessed for objective evidence of impairment individually.Jdémapany assesses probability of the debtor
fulfilling its obligations in the future and timing of Ifiment of those obligations, to be able to assess
recoverable amount of the assets.

Loans and receivables for which no individual impairment lssaéasured are assessed on collective level
using statistical modelling of historical trends of the jimlity of default, timing of recoveries and the amount
of loss incurred. These are then adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual losses are liddg greater or less than suggested by historical
modelling. Default rates, loss rates and the expected tinfilgwe recoveries are regularly benchmarked
against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriatevillhegwever, always include uncertainty
and may change depending on financial position of customers or gec@nalmic environment.

Measurement of fair values

More detailed description of fair value measurement is discloggdti3.4.

(4  Risk and risk management
4.1 Risk and risk management

The Company's risk management is an integral part of the governahc®aesion-making system, and a
systematic set of measures that ensures risk identificassessment, monitoring and control of the individual
exposure level as well as at-risk transaction sets and on Company overall risk level.

Risk management system ensures three levels of defence:

- the first level- daily risk management within the business unitli¢foed “four eyes” principle;
documentation of critical processes etc.);

- the second level of defence is ensured by risk management and compliations$y as well as actuarial
function by creation and maintenance of overall risk management system, redyyteiofile monitoring,
supporting business units and with direct access to the Company’s Management Board;

- the third level control is carried out by Internal Audit atkds providing independent assurance on risk
management and control processes and with direct access toryamgragagement, Audit Committee and
the Supervisory Board.

As the business of insurance represents the transfeslofrom the policy holder to the insurer and
management of this risk, the largest risks result from acceptingireirisk, choosing the reinsurance cover
and fulfilling obligations with respect to signed insuraogstracts. The Company is also exposed to financial
risks incurred during investment activities and operational risk arisidgy to day operations.

Risk management system covers risk underwriting and reseasiset and liability management, investment
management, liquidity management, operational risk management and tisktion activities for each
substantial risk.

The Company regularly monitors its risk profile. The fultatation of the required solvency capital is carried
out once a quarter, as well as regular stress tests, sensisid if the actual indicators differ from estimates
of the own risks and solvency assessment. The use of the standard formesiparats to the Company's risk
profile, which is assessed in the own risk and solvency assessment.

Based on the assessment prepared, the Management Board of the Compameaisikes on the actions to
be taken in the event of changes in the assessment of everarket conditions subject to certain conditions,
measures and follow-up. The results of the evaluation atkinstrategic and operational planning, budgeting
process, as well as in cases when significant changes in the Company's activileesnee:
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In order to ensure the reliability of the risk managemestesy, risk measurement, analysis and control
functions are separated from business functions, e.g. the @Ggmpsures that those who affect the risk peofil
are not simultaneously assigned risk monitoring and riskrapréis well as the Company regularly and
systematically educates its employees in order to raise theirresaref the risks.

4.2 Insurance risks and risk management

Insurance risk is the most significant risk faced by the Company itodday activities.

In order to manage insurance risk, the Company has develofeemtifcontrol and management tools. For
all insurance types, insurance terms and conditions have lesefoged, which are binding both for the
Company, as well as for the customers. Methodologies have been devielopkdnsurance types, which
should be followed when assessing and accepting the risknedsby the Company. The Company has
established Baltic Risk Underwriting Department which eypés are responsible for development of
insurance products, insurance terms and conditions and rislsemese methods. In addition, limits have been
fixed, up to which each of the employees is allowed to makecesion on risk underwriting. When fixing
limits, the hierarchy principle is observed; employee with higher tte ¢éresponsibility has the higher risk
underwriting authority.

The Company has developed and uses the quality management sykiem describes the insurance
administration process and the claims regulation proceduresasltbeen identified when and in what
circumstances certain types of procedures should be obs@wality measurements can be carried out in any
process and identify whether this process iageirried out in accordance with the Company’s interests and
described procedures to provide high quality servitliet@ustomers and to minimise the risk that is connected
with the insurance processes

(a) Underwriting strategy

Underwriting risk means the risk of loss or of advezhange in the value of insurance liabilities, due to
inadequate pricing and provisioning assumptions. To mitigate underwriting risk the Company’s underwriting
strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio drabésl on a large portfolio of similar risks over a
number of years and, as such, it is believed that this rechegariability of the outcome. The underwriting
strategy is set out in an annual business plan that sets out the afdasgess to be written and the industry
sectors to which the Company is prepared to expose itself.

This strategy is cascaded down to individual underwrttexsugh detailed underwriting authorities that set
out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line sizes dibusiness and industry in order to enforce
appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

Risk diversification is assumed as highly important throughkdhee risk underwriting process across all Baltic
countries.

Stress tests and analysis of the critical situation are used foruitihey strategy assessment.

The calculation of the tariffs and prices on insurance predetlects current market conditions and covers
the most probable assumptions necessary for the adjustment efrigults, aiming to significantly mitigate
financial risks.

Adherence to the underwriting authorities is being mortdtdrg management on an on-going basis. Those
transaction requiring special authorisation are subject to the special attention of the Company’s Board of
Directors.

(b) Basic products

The terms and conditions of insurance contracts that have aiahaféect on the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows arising from insurance conteaetset out below. In addition, the following
gives an assessmeif the Company’s main products and the ways in which it manages the associated risks.
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Casco insurance
Product features

The insurance indemnifies for losses which arise fromadge to, destruction or loss of vehicle. Several
additional insurance covers may also be purchased which are rel#tedrisured vehicle. The largest losses
arise from theft or destruction.

Management of risks
The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk andsotEwelopment risk.

Casco insurance premiums are determined on the basis ohthendus system, driver’s driving experience
period, insurance territory and other criteria which deeeti®e insurance premium upon the absence of losses
and increases the insurance premium upon the occurrencesesldrhe sums insured very rarely exceed
EUR70000. Insurance premiums are set in line with applicableanse methodology. Motor vehicles are
divided into four risk groups with different insurance premiumestdvlinsurance usually contains a retention
element by the policyholder.

Motor third party liability insurance
Product features

This insurance is a compulsory insurance, whose policy condaimhsndemnification rules are prescribed
by the respective regulations on Motor Third Party Liabiligurance. MTPL insurance covers physical injury
claims and property claims in countries where the policies hass$set as well as claims caused abroad by
insured motorists under the Green Card system. Most ohther third party liability insurance indemnities
are for property damage and lump sum personal injuriestlynoedical treatment costs, and temporary
absence from work. However, long-term indemnities may alsmssilge, such as pensions and permanent
inability to work which may be paid out over a long term as annuities.

Even if from previous statistics the claims have been notifiechptly and can be settled without delay, the
situation can change and claims arising from motor third party liability insurance are classified as ‘long-tail’
classes where the ultimate claim cost takes longer to determine.

Management of risks

The key risks associated with this product are underwritgkgand claims development risk. The Company
therefore monitors and reacts to changes in the general econongoranercial environment in which it
operates. For determining the premiums of motor third partyitialisurance, a bonus-malus system is used
which reduces the insurance premium upon the absence of dosate by the insured persons and increases
the insurance premium upon the existence of losses created byutiee ipsrsons.

Health insurance

Product features

The health insurance product is offered to companies thatgmediealth insurance for their employees.
Health insurance indemnifies against expenses such as dusitsy laboratory and diagnostic tests and
hospital treatment.

Management of risks

The Company monitors and reacts to changes in the priceeétcahservices, monitors the claim ratios on
employer’s bases and adjusts insurance premiums accordingly each year when renewal takes place.

Property insurance

Product features

Property insurance indemnifies, subject to any specifiedslior deductibles, the insured against loss or
damage to material damage of property. The risks covered pgrpransurance include fire risk, pipe leakage
explosion, burglary and robbery, and storm risk. The megugntly occurring risks for property include pipe
leakages and fire. Larger losses result most often from fire.

Generally, claims in the property insurance line are notifiexmptly and can be settled without delay.
Property business is therefore classified as ‘short-tail’, contrasted with the ‘long-tail’ classes where the ultimate
claim cost takes longer to determine.
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In addition to property insurance customer can get the indgwiritusiness interruption arising from insured
property damage, as well as to purchase liability insurance withrgswal estate assets.

Business interruption insurance covers lost business profitsfiged costs incurred that arise from the
realisation of any risk covered by the property insurantieeo€ompany. Upon the sale of that insurance type,
it is considered to be particularly important to take into account thepeency of the financial statements.

Management of risks
The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk andsotiwelopment risk.

To charge premiums appropriate specifics of different properties assedsEor private property insurance,
it is expected that there will be large numbers of ptégzewith similar risk profiles. However, for commercial

business this may not be the case. Many commercial propepggals comprise a uniqgue combination of
location, type of business, and safety measures in place. &eguh premium commensurate with the risk
for these policies will be more complex.

Property classes are exposed to the risk that the inaiilfedake false or invalid claims, or exaggerate the
amount claimed following a loss. This largely explains why ecooocoinditions correlate with the
profitability of the property insurance line of businessurance risk is managed primarily through pricing,
independent assessment of property under international standaoduct design, risk selection and
reinsurance. The Company therefore monitors and reacts to charthegeneral economic and business by
changing pricing or product conditions.

(c) Insurancerisk concentration

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may atisee a particular event or series of events
could impact heavily upon the Company’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single insurance
contract or through a small number of related contracts, andteiteumstances where significant liabilities
could arise.

Risk concentration may occur as a result of different coincidence®guidrities. In property insurance, risk

concentration might occur if one densely populated area expesiangeof the exposures (e.g. fire), which

may easily transfer from one property to another one and this actinotdze avoided.

In addition, the management is aware that the possible risk catgantran be in one company or an industry
in total, for which several risks are insured. When insurin sisks,a precondition is the assessment of the
company’s financial position and capacity, as well as identifying how large financial liabilities can arise, how

large the liabilities are that are already held by the Compadyvhat it can afford. When evaluating financial

risks, the trends of economic growth and the risks that might impact thisersadied.

In order to minimise losses that could occur because of ris&eatration, the Company uses reinsurance
effectively— by protecting risks proportionally and nereportionally. Placing reinsurance, the Company’s

net retention for one risk is defined per one object amdpe event, when losses happen simultaneously for
several objects. The Company follows the Reinsurance pollighvihas been approved by the Management
Board.

The Company’s key methods in managing these risks are two-fold. Firstly, the risk is managed through
appropriate underwriting. Underwriters are not permitted topadbe risks unless the expected profits are
commensurating with the risks assumed. Secondly, the risk is naatragagh the use of reinsurance. The
Company purchases reinsurance coverage for various insurarzceflimesiness. The Company assesses the
costs and benefits associated with the reinsurance programme on an Gaga@ng

The Company sets out the total aggregate exposure thatepiared to accept in relation to the concentrations
of risk. It monitors these exposures both at the time déwmriting a risk, and on a monthly basis by reviewing
reports, which show the key aggregations to which the CompanyasezkpThe Company uses a number of
modelling tools to monitor risk accumulation in order to meashee effectiveness of the reinsurance
programme and the Company’s net retention.

Concentration risk is tested and evaluated within diffeseshario tests. Stress test results are used for decision
making to understand what concentration risk the Company may undertake.

Geographic concentration of risks
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Business concentration risk is a serious aspect of the itgubarsiness. In view of this and to reduce the
concentration risk in one country, the Company continues to devplptmns in all Baltic countries. As a
result, in the reporting period, 34.9% of all businessn@yearned premiums) was conducted in Latvia and
51.5% in Lithuania.

Concentration of risks by industry

The concentration of insurance risks by industry does not&@&&for an industry, therefore the Company’s
managemerndoesconsider the risk concentration is at the acceptable level.

(d) Catastrophes

The Company’s management is aware that catastrophe risks are possible. In the Company’s geographic
position these risks are mostly connected with meteorological phenostenas, floods, nature disasters
(hail, snow, freezing, etc.). Large fires and earthquakes are unlitetythey may occur. The most
characteristic catastrophes in Baltics are floods and stbwrasder to minimise the impact of catastrophe risk
on the Company, reinsurance is arranged -both proportionally and non-mmoglytiin addition, facultative
reinsurance is purchased for large risks. The Company has del/eiefieodology for calculating its retention.
It depends on many factors and the historical statisticatrirdtion in each product group. According to the
management, the measures taken sufficiently reduce the impact of camsskmm the Company.

(e) Liability adequacy test

The Company assesses its insurance liabilities shown ayyrimalindertaking a liability adequacy test (LAT).

A liability adequacy test is carried out by line of businieskatvia, Lithuania and Estonia at each reporting
date and assesses whether recognised insurance liabilgiaslequate using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If the assessment ieglicaserves are inadequate in the light of the
established future cash flows, the deficiency is recogniseiprofit or loss. Expected cash flows relating to
claims and expenses are estimated by reference to the expeadjustéed for significant individual losses
which are not expected to recur.

Liability adequacy test is performed by countries and lofidrisiness using information on gross claims paid
and reserves separate for BTA and InterRisk portfolio.t&$tetakes into account potential decrease of claims
paid due to regress. However, it does not take into account reinsurance.

Liability adequacy tests as at 31.12.2017 and 31.12.2016 did not idangifympairment in respect to
evaluation for the prior period.

Claims development

Information on the claims development has been provided in trdlrstrate the insurance risk to which the
Company is subject. The claim table discloses a comparison of civeutsyments to date and the
development of technical reserves made for these insurance clainsdenagear.

Excesses or deficits indicated in each column should be esdlsaparately by ignoring other columns
because such corrections made in the prior years may bdddchs part of the corrections made during the
prior years.

The recalculated technical reserves and the cumulative defiekcess, which is indicated in the enclosed
table, may subsequently vary due to changes in different factors.

Although the information provided in the table reflects tstingates of historical unpaid claims made in the
prior years, the users of these financial statements should extoégbolation of past remains or deficits in
respect to the balance of unpaid losses of this period.
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The following tabléllustrates the Company’s adequacy of gross claim reserves for each accident year.

Claim development analysis, EUR’000
Year of insured occurrence

2015 year
and before  2016year 2017 year Total

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Total claims for the year 91 289* 84 560 98521 98521
-one year later 87 818 87720 87 720
-two years later 107 603 107603
Total payments 61 986** 73 330 57 139 192 65
Total claim reserves 31.12.2017 45 617*** 14390 41 382 101 389

* Total claims includes claims for insurance portfolio assumed by thgp@oy on 1 July 2015 as a result of reorganisation
process.

** |n 2015 gross claim payments related only to period from 1 July 203% fecember 2017.
*** |n 2017 reserves acquired as a result of reorganisation with Interrisk ak add

(f) Sensitivity analysis assumption made for general business

Assumptions that are used in the calculations are based on the Company’s own experience, information from
market and expert opinions on market trends. The sources of dataasisnputs for the assumptions are
internal, using detailed studies that are carried out aiyn{dide assumptions are checked to ensure that they
are consistent with inflation rates observable in marketstloer published information. There is more
emphasis on current trends. Where in early years there idiesu information to make a reliable best
estimate of claims development, prudent assumptions are used.

The estimated amount of IBNR could be influenced by imffgtihe risk that significantly large claims will be
reported with delay, seasonality of the reporting of claims and ngtker

As at 31 December 2017 82% of IBNR consists of the following lifigsisiness: compulsory motor TPL,
CASCO and general liability. Considering the current marikeation, the Company believes that the most
volatile assumptions, which stands in one line with claim amanaitaverage number of amount insured, is
inflation.

The table below presents the change in IBNR as at 31 Dec@®berin the case if the annual economic
inflation used in the IBNR estimation would change as a result of a 3% chanfatian.

EUR’000 IBNR, as at IBNR if projected annual IBNR without annual
Line of business 31.12.2017** inflation increased by 3%** inflation**
Compulsory motor TPL 13 884 14282 13153
General TPL 23830 2910 2679
CASCO 726 730 717
EUR’000 IBNR, as at IBNR if projected annual IBNR without annual
Lineof business 31.12.2016* inflation increased by 3%* inflation*
Compulsory motor TPL 8 737 9191 8 457
General TPL 2133 2238 2 065
CASCO 634 646 626

*Only BTA portfolio.
** |n 2017 reserves acquired as a result of reorganisation with InterRisidded.

The main assumption used in the calculation of technical resisraestable claims statistics. The Management
expects that the development of claims in the future will Hawsame pattern as in the past. Reserves are not
discounted.
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The nature of the business makes it very difficult to ijptedth certainty the likely outcome of any particular
claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notifieditiaiassessed on a separate case by case basis,
with due regard to the claim circumstances, information avaitabloss amount and the historical evidence
of the size of similar claims. Potential claim estimatesrewveewed regularly and are updated as and when
new information arises. The provisions are based on the informati@nttyrvailable. However, the claims
paid may vary from the previously reserved amount as a efsstibsequent developments or if catastrophic
events occur. The impact of many of the items affecting the ulticosts of the loss is difficult to estimate.
The provision estimation difficulties also differ by clasfsbusiness due to differences in the underlying
insurance contract, the volume of claims and the frequency of claitesmiténg the occurrence date of a
claim, and reporting lags.

For most of the risks, the costs of outstanding IBNR researeestimated using a range of statistical methods
such as the Chain Ladder methods. Such methods extrapolatvéiepthent of paid and incurred claims,
average cost per claims and claim numbers for each accidentagealripon observed development of earlier
years and expected loss ratios.

The key methods, which are used and have remained unchanged fromamiaree

e Chain Ladder methods, which use historical data to estimate potgaiias incurred in future

o other chain coefficient method to evaluate the frequency of insurands;even

e loss ratio methods is used, based on the Company’s expectation of the loss ratio for a class of business.

The actual method or blend of methods used varies by fifmigsiness and observed historical claims
development.

To the extent that these methods use historical claims developricentation, they assume that the historical
claims development pattern will occur again in the future. &laee reasons why this may not be the case,
which, insofar as they can be identified, have been allowedy modifying the methods. Such reasons
include:

e changes in processes that affect the development/ recordingno$ gaid and incurred (such as changes
in claim reserving procedures);

e economic, legal, political and social trends (resulting in differentékpected levels of inflation);

e changes in mix of business;

e random fluctuations, including the impact of large losses.

Assumptions used for estimation of MTPL claim reserves

IBNR estimation of MTPL claims is performed for the maart of claims incurred excluding pensions and
another bodily injury claims and separate calculation is pagdifor pensions and bodily injury claims. Chain
coefficients are calculated separately for material claims incuresdytei for all each Baltic states.

RBNS reserves for BTA and InterRisk portfolio for pensiame calculated based on life insurance formulas.
The main assumptions in these calculations are mortalitystabfation and discount rates. General Latvian
mortality tables are used for RBNS calculations if people@tend or third group disabled person and special
disabled person mortality tables are used for firseoosd group disabled persons. Cash flows are calculated
till end of life tables or till pensions. EIOPA given discount ratesiaegl for discounting cash flows.

4.3 Financial risks and risk management

The Company is exposed to financial risks due to operatighdimancial instruments. Financial risks include

market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Below is a desd@oipof each of these financial risks and a summary

of the methods used by the Company to manage these risksutso those risks arises in the normal course

of the Company’s business.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities, including investments, deposits with banks, loans, insurance

receivables and receivables from reinsurance activities, are expdsshcial risk as follows:

e Market risk: risk of loss or of adverse change in the fif@situation resulting, directly or indirectly, from
fluctuations in the level and in the volatility of market priceassets, liabilities and financial instruments,
including interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk;
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e Credit risk: risk of loss or of adverse change in the fir@rsituation, resulting from fluctuations in the
credit standing of issuers of securities, counterparties andedmgrd to which Company is exposed, in
the form of counterparty default risk, or spread risk, or market riskeotrations;

e Liquidity risk: risk that Company is unable to realise inwesits and other assets in order to settle its
financial obligations when they fall due.

Market risks

All financial instruments and positions are subject to marlelt, the risk that future changes in market
conditions may make an instrument more or less valuable. Theabgngsubject to potential market risks
and can incur losses from financial assets and financial fiebiks the result of changes in interest rates,
currency exchange rates and changes in price of equity instruments.

In order to limit investment risk, investments are made fifer@nt financial instruments. When choosing
financial instruments, the requirements of the insurance compahthariaw on supervision of insurance
companies are observed.

When carrying out investing activities, the employees of Finab@ghrtment are guided according to the
approved Investment establishment procedure, which regulates nszamg igelated to control and the
minimisation of investments risk.

The reduction of investments risk is carried out in two waystly, by diversifying the investments portfolio,

and secondly, by analysing the specific asset before the perohaisis asset and following the available
information on this asset.

(a) Currencyrisk

Currency risk: the sensitivity of the values of asdethilities and financial instruments to changes in the level
or in the volatility of currency exchange rates.

Some insurance liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company’s policy is to restrict the
currency risk with respect to known and expected transactionf®reign currencies. Currency risk

management is based on investments in the respective currerfeée€ompany is not engaged in any
speculative transactions that may increase the currency risk.

The Company held an open currency position in DKK in the adpriv of 10 316 thousand EUR, primarily
invested into covered fixed income securities. Taking into acebanDKK is pegged to EUR, the Company
believes that the underlying currency risk is insignificami acceptable, and does not require any risk
mitigation measures.

An analysis of sensitivity of the Company’s net income for the period and equity to changes in the foreign
currency exchange rates based on currency positions from assketgmbilities denominated in foreign
currency existing as at 31 DecemB6i7and2016 and a simplified scenario of a 10% change in PLN, GBP,
USD to EUR exchange rate is as follows:

2017 2016
EUR’000 Net income Net income
10% depreciation of PLN against EUR 20 2
10% appreciation of PLN against EUR (20) )
10% depreciation of GBP against EUR (6) 4)
10% appreciation of GBP against EUR 6 4
10% depreciation of USD against EUR (51 (24)
10% appreciation of USD against EUR 51 24
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The split of financial assets and liabilities and technical reservesrigncies in EUR equivalent as at period

end were as follows:
31 December 2017

Financial assets

Debt securities and other fixe

income securities

Non-fixed income securities
Deposits with banks
Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

Technical reserves, net
Technical reserves for
unearned premiums and
unexpired risks, net
Outstanding claim technical
reserves, net

Total technical reserves, net
Financial liabilities
Technical reserves, net and
financial liabilities

Open currency position

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Debt securities and other fixe

income securities

Deposits with banks
Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

Technical reserves, net
Technical reserves for
unearned premiums and
unexpired risks, net
Outstanding claim technical
reserves, net

Total technical reserves, net
Financial liabilities
Technical reserves, net and
financial liabilities

Open currency position

(b) Pricerisk

EUR usD DKK NOK PLN GBP Other Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
134 398 459 10 275 - 1305 - - 146 437
5974 - - - - - - 5974
3303 - - - - - - 3303
31270 - - - - - - 31270
29 661 895 108 22 250 2531 95 33562
204 606 1354 10383 22 1555 2531 95 220546
64 268 597 - - - - - 64 865
64 833 52 67 - 1646 2472 235 69 305
1129 101 649 67 - 1646 2472 235 134170 [ Commented [BD12]: Jabut 180 349 ]
18691 ) ) ) ) ) ) 18691 Commented [IK13R12]: Labots, ieprieks bija Gross, tagad ‘
147 792 649 67 - 1646 2472 235 152 861 pareizi ir Net
56 814 705 10 316 22 (91) 59 (140) 67 685
EUR usD DKK NOK PLN GBP Other Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
79 110 539 - 115 1472 - - 81236
1357 - - - - - - 1357
20401 - - - - - - 20401
39 080 280 109 24 8 2735 243 42 479
139948 819 109 139 1480 2735 243 145 473
53906 578 - - 1 - - 54 485
45 478 4 237 6 1494 2 696 230 50 145
99 384 582 237 6 1495 2696 230 104 630
12 328 - - - - - - 12328
111712 582 237 6 1495 2696 230 116 958
28396 237 (128) 133 (15) 39 13 28 675

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrumiitfluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specifidriditidual instrument or factors affecting
all instruments traded in the market. Price risk arises whe@dhgany takes a long or short position in a

financial instrument.

A significant share of the Company’s financial investments was accounted for as available-for-sale

instruments. Changes in securities prices for availfdoieale instruments is reported through total
comprehensive income for the period. A simplified scenario of al&ge in all securities prices would result
in the following effect on the total comprehensive income:
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2017 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

5% increase in securities prices 7 385 250
5% decrease in securities prices (7 385) (250)

An analysis of the sensitivity of the Company’s profit or loss and equity to changes in securities piesgd
on positions existing as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 and a isdhplienario of a 5% change in all
securities prices is as follows:

2017 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

5% increase in securities prices 90 4036
5% decrease in securities prices (90) (4 036)

(c) Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk is defined as the loss in valuetiagiffom a change in interest rates and is viewed both from
the asset-only perspective and in relation to the interest-rate sgnsitithe liabilities.

Measures for management of the interest rate risk in theo@uoyrare based on the assessment of the impact
of the interest rate risk on the Company's financial irsdite@e Company is using EIOPA given discount rates
for long-term liabilities (annuities). Due to merger modiftluration and annuities count is increased therefore
also impact is changed.

Also share of interest bearing assets and modified dunatinoreased. Therefore the Company is exposed to
a medium significant interest rate risk. Asset-liability mismatanalized quarterly.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 Profit or loss (e]e]] Profit or loss (e]¢]]
10 bp parallel increase 441 (536) 82 82
10 bp parallel decrease (456) 521 (82) (82)

Changes in fair value that impact changes of interest rateaoicial assets with fixed interest rate, are reflected
in price risk sensitivity analysis.

The following table present the Company’s financial assets analysed according to repricing periods determined

as the earlier of the remaining contractual maturity and theamtuél repricing. The interest rate repricing
profile of the Company’s assets as at end of the period

31 December 2017 Of which
Non- subject to

Within 6 6-12 Over 5 interest fixed

months months 1-5years years  bearing Total rates

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Financial assets
Investments at fair value

through profit or loss - - 1825 - - 1825 1825
Available-for-sale

instruments 238 357 29086 113150 5974 148805 142831
Heldto-maturity

instruments - - - 1781 - 1781 1781
Deposits with banks 3211 92 - - - 3303 3303
Receivables - - - - 31270 31270 -
Cash and cash equivalen - - - - 33562 33562 -
Total financial assets 3449 449 30911 114931 70 806 220 546 149 740
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31 December 2016 Non- Of which

Within 6 6-12 Over 5 interest subject to
months months 1-5years years  bearing Total fixed rates

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial assets

Investments at fair value

through profit or loss 12 892 5333 56 569 1416 - 76 210 76 210

Available-for-sale

instruments - 226 4800 - - 5026 5026

Deposits with banks - 1064 293 - - 1357 1357

Receivables - - - - 20 401 20 401 -

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 42 479 42 479 -

Total financial assets 12892 6 623 61 662 1416 62880 145473 82593

Liquidity risks

In accordance with the approved investment policy, the Company reeedsure that at least 90% of the
assets required for the technical reserve cover would be placed ighidiy investments.

High liquidity investments are deemed to be the following assets:

1) claims on demand to credit institutions;

2) other claims to solvent credit institutions (term deposits) @hose remaining repayment term does
not exceed 30 days, and deposits with another term if the agrestipetgtes an option to withdraw
money before the due date (less the amount of contractugtypfar preterm withdrawal of deposits

if such is provided);

3) investments in securities if they have a constant, unrestricted magkethey can be sold in a short
time without considerable losses or can be used as a collateral fpt oédean.

The tables below shows the allocation of the Company’s assets and liabilities to maturity groups based on the
time remaining from the reporting period end date to the ratlates or expected dates of settlement. While
the tables below reflect the liquidity risk, it is based on timeotdractual maturity. Investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, are denesl as highly liquid financial assets and
management has the ability to sell them earlier than the contrdataathereby helping to manage its liquidity

gap, if needed.
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31 December 2017 Uptol2 Fromlto Over 5 No fixed
months Syears years  maturity Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair value through pro

or loss - 1825 - - 1825
Available-for-sale instruments 595 29 086 113 150 5974 148 805
Held-to-maturity instruments - - 1781 - 1781
Deposits with banks 3303 - - - 3303
Receivables from direct insurance activities 30241 - - - 30241
Receivables from reinsurance activities 1029 - - - 1029
Other receivables 787 - - - 787
Cash and cash equivalents 33562 - - - 33562
Total financial assets taking into account
maturity 69517 30911 114931 5974 221333
Total financial assets taking into account
liquidity 219/553 - 1781 - 221334
Technical reservesand financial liabilities
Technical reserves, net 97 902 12 247 24 021 - 134170
Financial liabilities 18 691 - - - 18 691
Total technical reservesand financial
liabilities 116 593 12 247 24021 - 152 861
Maturity gap (47 076) 18 664 90 910 5974 68 472
Maturity gap taking into account liquidity 102 959 (12 247) (22 240) - 68 472
Accumulated maturity gap taking into
account liquidity 102 959 90712 68 472 68 472 68 472
31 December 2016 Uptol2 From1lto Over 5 No fixed

months Syears years maturity Total

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Financial assets
Financial instruments at fair value through pra

or loss 18 225 56 569 1416 - 76 210
Available-for-sale instruments 226 4 800 - - 5026
Deposits with banks 1064 293 - - 1357
Receivables from direct insurance activities 19 994 - - - 19994
Receivables from reinsurance activities 407 - - - 407
Other receivables 160 - - - 160
Cash and cash equivalents 42 479 - - - 42 479
Total financial assetstaking into account

maturity 82555 61 662 1416 - 145 633
Total financial assetstaking into account

liquidity 145 340 293 - - 145 633
Technical reserves and financial liabilities

Technical reserves, net 90 904 9049 2000 2677 104 630
Financial liabilities 12 328 - - - 12 328
Total technical reserves and financial

liabilities 103232 9049 2000 2677 116 958
Maturity gap (20 677) 52 613 (584) (2677) 28675
Maturity gap taking into account liquidity 42108 (8 756) (2 000) (2677) 28675
Accumulated maturity gap taking into

account liquidity 42108 33352 31352 28675 28675
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The Company carries out regular analysis of maturity strucfuassets and liabilities, including evaluation
of potential effect of mismatches in the maturity struetaf such assets and liabilities on the Company's
financial results and financial position. Effects of inmemhts on maturity structure of assets are evaluated
prior to investments.

Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk which isisketltat a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. The Company structures the levels af dsidt undertakes by placing limits on
the amount of risk accepted in relation to one issuer of siesyrilebtor, borrower, or group of the above.
Such risks are monitored regularly.

Credit risk mainly arising from direct insurance debtors and reinse debtors in case the counterparty fails
to fulfil its payment obligations.

Maximum credit risk 2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000

Gross Net Gross Net
Government bonds 120 050 120 050 79 168 79 168
Corporate bonds 16 112 16 112 2068 2 068
Mortgage bonds 10 275 10275
Deposits with banks 3303 3303 1357 1357
Due from policy holders 29196 28550 18 745 18 543
Due from intermediaries 1827 1691 1556 1451
Receivables from reinsurance activities 1029 1029 408 407
Other debtors 1038 733 732 419
Cash 33562 33562 42 479 42 479
Total 216392 205 030 146 513 145892 ( Commented [BD24]: Jabiit 215 420

Credit risk arises on the financial investments, directrarste amounts receivable and the reinsurance {fommiﬂt‘f [1K25R24]: Labots pec pedgjiem labojumicm
amounts receivable and is the risk the counterparty defaults on the paynhenamiount due. e e

Management of Financial investments

The Company manages credit risks by investing most of the investmenarkets and investments with high
ratings. Deposits are mainly invested in Latvian, Lithuanian Bstbnian commercial banks that are
subsidiaries of foreign banks and that do not have separate ratings.

Investment analysis by ratings:
Listed debt ~ Government Mortgage

2017 Rating securities bonds bonds Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Agency: S& P,
Fitch, Moody’s
AAA - - 10 275 10 275
AA+ - 3186 - 3186
AA 691 6 088 - 6779
AA- 1881 - - 1881
A+ 4964 8 194 - 13 158
A 998 0 - 998
A- 1546 95 138 - 96 684
BBB+ 3631 7 444 - 11075
BBB 2401 - - 2401
Total 16 112 120 050 10275 146 437
2016 Rating Listed debt securities Government bonds Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Agency: S& P, Fitch,
Moody’s
AAA - 4 048 4048
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A+ 115 - 115
A- - 74 845 74 845
A - 275 275
BBB 1953 - 1953
Total 2068 79 168 81 236

Insurance receivables

Direct insurance amounts receivable are monitored by mamageon a periodic basis and policies are
cancelled if appropriate notification has been provided to the polidghahd the amounts due are not paid.

Reinsurance

The Company reinsures a part of underwritten risks in aedeontrol its exposure to losses and protect own
capital. It purchases the obligatory and facultative reinsuranceagmvey reduce the net exposure and not to
exceed the actual margin of solvency. The Company also buysregine treaties for the main lines of its
business that protect the Company from any cumulative |tsaemay arise from multiple claims resulting
from the same event.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit risk, and such reinsuranceredtev&reported after deductions for known
counterparty insolvencies and uncollectible items. The Company n®tfigofinancial condition of reinsurers
on an ongoing basis and reviews its reinsurance arrangements periodically.
Risks are ceded to the (re)insurance companies with a squutdtien taking into account internal and VIG
guidelines. The decision of choosing a cooperation partner vating below Adevel by Standard and Poor’s,
Moody, Reuters, A.M. Best and FITCH, upon evaluating all riskspasdinated with the Management Board
and VIG Security Committee.
Reinsurance companies settle their obligations in the tenecof 30 days. Reinsurance agreements also
stipulate for cases when upon the insurance indemnity exceadiertain amount, the reinsurance claim is
paid immediately.
During the reporting period, there have been no cases where a reinsunapeay has not fulfilled its
obligations to the Company.

31 December 2017

Reinsurer’s share on

Reinsurer’s share in

Reinsurance debtors written premiums claims paid

Rating EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

AA-, AA, AA+ 253 2 606 302

A-, A A+ 587 18 150 3770

No rating 189 2 660 413

Total 1029 23416 4485
31 December 2016

Reinsurer’s share on Reinsurer’s share in

Reinsurance debtors written premiums claims paid

Rating EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

AA-, AA, AA+ 16 3409 1041

A-, A A+ 10 2914 475

BBB-, BBB, BBB+ - 3 -

BB-, BB, BB+ - - 78

B-, B, B+ - 20 -

No rating 381 315 5

Total 407 6 661 1599
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Taking into account the reinsurance agreements the Company’s liability for each insurance risk for the main

business lines is as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000
Motor own damage insurance Retained on ne Retained on ne
CMTPL 600 800
Health insurance Retained on ne Retained on ne
Property insurance 1000 1000
Travel accident insurance Retained on ne Retained on ne
General third party liability 400 400
Various financial risks 1000 1000
Guarantee insurance 1000 1500
Credit insurance 800 800
Cargo insurance 1000 1000
Personal accident insurance 50 Retained on ne
Aircraft third party liability insurance 100 5000
Marine insurance 800 700
Aircraft insurance 100 300
Railway insurance 1000 1000
Marine third party liability insurance 800 700

Legal expense insurance

Retained on ne

Retained on ne

4.4 Operational risk management

The Company has determined that customers should receive high qualitg.sEne most significant risk in
the provision of these services has been defined todl#ied and knowledgeable employees representing the
Company. In order to attract and keep middle and top levdfigdamployees in the Company, the Company
has implemented a competitive salary and motivation systesratthieving a very high retention on the top
and middle management level.
In the definition of operational risk, the Company inckidbe risk of inadequate or incorrect internal
procedures, mistakes of personnel or systems, or external eventavéiooperational risk, the capital
requirement is calculated using the standard formula. As a oéghke annual assessment of risk profile and
internal control system, three most material operational risk categeeie defined:

- other legal and compliance risks (mainly related to the proteof personal data and competition
law);

- the risk of human error;

- process and organizational risk.
In order to minimize the operational risk, the Company ce®atfferent control strategies - preventive, for
example, by setting access/authorization levels, corrective (foarsedrly warning and mitigation of an
operational risk event recurrence), and identifying ones that are targettddbaperational risk events. The
company develops internal regulatory documents for essential procedgeevdes staff training.
The Company collects and register the data on operational risk d@heitsauses, consequences and measures
taken to prevent their recurrence. One of the objectives ofibpeal risk management is to ensure that the
control efficiency indicator is not less than 95% (calculatethé process of evaluating the internal control
system).
In order to ascertain the conformity of the standard formittathe operational risk assessment, the Company
also uses the operational risk self-assessment (risk assepsatiitility and potential impact assessment) to
identify and evaluate operational risk. The Risk Management Functioo;dperation with each risk holder,
expresses qualitative and quantitative assessments and etagmifisible operational risk events, thus
identifying the Company's operational risk level and the necessargliogtactivities to reduce it.
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The Company considers the capital requirement for operatiskatalculated with the standard formula, to
be adequate.

4.5 Capital adequacy requirements and Capital management

According to the requirements of the ,,Insurance and Reinsurance Law” of the Republic of Latvia, Directive
2009/138/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission ReReatéation 2015/35
which are in force for the reporting period, the Company shewtdtantly have at its disposal own funds,
which should equal or be higher than a determined solvency margin.

The Company has developed a capital management policy to be sure:

(a) that own fund items, both at issue and subsequently, are igldsgitording to the features in Articles 71,
73, 75 and 77 of Commission Delegated Regulation 2015/35.

(b) before issuance of any own fund items that it can satisfgriteria for the appropriate tier on a continuous
basis;

(c) that own funds items are not encumbered by the existence of@®neents or connected transactions, or
as a consequence of a group structure, which would undermine their efficapjitak

(d) that the actions required or permitted under the contrasta&ltory or legal provisions governing an own
fund item are initiated and completed in a timely manner;

(e) that the contractual terms governing own fund item iterasckzar and unambiguous in relation to the
criteria for classification into tiers;

(f) that any policy or statement in respect of ordinary shaviatids is fully taken into account in
consideration of the capital position and the assessment of gseéable dividends;

(9) that the manner in which items included in own funds utiteetransitional measures operate in times of
stress, and in particular how the items absorb losses isedsesk if necessary, taken into account in the
ORSA.

Capital risk management

The Company haadopted the Solvency Il regulation, which entered into force on 1 January 20$éraed

as the main model for capital risk management in the repgrérigd. The Company has chosen to use the
Standard model for calculating and reporting the capital requiremertdsding to principles described by the
regulation.

The Company have made active use of the legislative changesr trengthen its risk management in the
Company
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(5) Grosswritten premiums

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Gross  Reinsurer’s Net Gross  Reinsurer’s Net
written sharein written written sharein written

premiums premiums premiums premiums premiums premiums
Personal accident

insurance 3775 (26) 3749 3412 - 3412
Health insurance 15 337 - 15 337 12 633 - 12 633
CASCO 38 950 ) 38 943 31572 - 31572
Railway insurance 292 12) 280 281 (11) 270
Aircraft insurance 82 1) 81 134 (108) 26
Marine insurance 1915 (1729) 186 1164 (1 049) 115
Cargo insurance 1433 (141) 1292 869 (200) 669
Property insurance 20 854 (2 251) 18 603 15900 (1 804) 14 096
Aircraft third party

liability insurance 106 (12) 94 351 (348) 3

Marine third party liability

insurance 92 (83) 9 121 (112) 9

General third party

liability 6772 (1039) 5733 6 529 (962) 5567
Credit insurance 221 (78) 143 217 (75) 142
Guarantee insurance 5676 (1 480) 4196 4 839 (922) 3917
Various financial risks 212 (45) 167 185 (69) 116
Legal costs insurance 27 - 27 31 - 31

Travel accident insurance 5786 2) 5784 4 468 - 4 468
CMTPL* 61 449 (16 510) 44 939 48 102 (1.001) 47 101
Total 162 979 (23 416) 139 563 130 808 (6 661) 124 147

* The Companymakes obligatory deductions in accordance with the law “On compulsory motor third party liability” and

the related Cabinet of Ministers regulations of the Republic of Latvia.sGvagten premiums on motor third party
liabilities insurance are shown net of the obligatory deductions EUR 463atitb(2016: EURB69thousand).

The Company makes obligatory deductions to the Motor Burefilithmania and Estonia in accordance with the
statutory requirements. Gross written premiums on motor third party liabifisesance are shown net of the obligatory

deductions to the transport insurance offices of Lithuania and Estone@amtbunt of EUR 1 181 thousand (2016: EUR
301thousand).

According to the law “On Motor Vehicles Third Party Liability Obligatory Insurance” and the related Cabinet
Regulations of the Republic of Latvia, during the reportiagagal the Company neethe following obligatory
deductions from gross premiums written in this insurance type:

Cofinancing of the activities o EUR 0.50 per contract + EUR828

the Latvian Motor Vehicle per month

Insurance Bureau:

For the Guarantee Fund and t According to a special calculatic

Interests  Protection Fund i by taking into account the period

Latvia: contract and the type of insure
motor vehicle

For the Road Traffic Safety Fun 2% from gross written premium

in Latvia:
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(6) Net earned premiums

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Gross  Reinsurer’s Net Gross  Reinsurer’s Net
earned sharein earned earned sharein earned

premiums premiums premiums premiums premiums premiums
Personal accident

insurance 3525 (26) 3499 3091 - 3091
Health insurance 14 553 - 14 553 11735 - 11735
CASCO 35224 ) 35 217 29 117 - 29 117
Railway insurance 295 12) 283 349 (11) 338
Aircraft insurance 100 (33) 67 112 (90) 22
Marine insurance 1579 (1412) 167 1039 (938) 101
Cargo insurance 1282 (151) 1131 819 (191) 628
Property insurance 17 205 (1 903) 15 302 14 500 (2 037) 12 463
Aircraft third party

liability insurance 271 (164) 107 426 (340) 86
Marine third party liability

insurance 105 (94) 11 104 (97) 7

General third party

liability 6 404 (971) 5433 6 353 (923) 5430
Credit insurance 253 (81) 172 215 (69) 146
Guarantee insurance 5202 (1 365) 3837 4 807 (1043) 3764
Various financial risks 192 47) 145 182 (72) 110
Legal costs insurance 27 - 27 30 - 30

Travel accident insurance 5553 2) 5551 4 568 - 4 568
CMTPL 56 577 (15 793) 40 784 45 026 (1.001) 44 025
Total 148 347 (22 061) 126 286 122 473 (6812) 115 661

(7)  Technical reservesfor unearned premiums and unexpired risks

Gross Reinsurer share Net

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Balance at 31 December 2015 48372 (2373) 45999
Written premiums 130 808 (6661) 124 147
Premiums earned (122473) 6812 (115661)
Changes during period 8 335 151 8 486
Balance at 31 December 2016 56 707 (2222) 54 485
Acquired as result of reorganization 12 690 (5779) 6911
Written premiums 162 979 (23 416) 139563
Premiums earned (148 347) 22 061 (126 286)
Changes during period 14 632 (1355) 13 277
Reinsurers deposit - (9 808) (9 808)
Balance at 31 December 2017 84 029 (19 164) 64 865
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31.12.2017 31.12.2016

EUR’000 EUR’000
Gross Net Gross Net
Unearned premium reserve 83 746 64 582 56 477 54 255
Unexpired risk reserve (note 3.2. c) 283 283 230 230
84 029 64 865 56 707 54 485

(8) Other technical income, net

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Fee for policy amendments and cancellation 183 151
Other technical income 113 133
296 284

The Company acts as an agent when paying out insurance claimsatfrob@ther non-resident companies.
The Company does not accept insurance risks and receivesifitllursement of claims paid on behalf of
other insurance companies. The Company receives an agent fee fovitesser

57




BTABALTIC INSURANCE COMPANY AAS ANNUAL REPORT FORHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

9 Gross claims paid

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Reinsurer’s Reinsurer’s
Gross sharein Net claims Gross sharein  Net claims
claims paid claim paid claimspaid claim paid
Personal accident
insurance (1 565) - (1 565) (1 637) - (1637)
Health insurance (11 023) - (11 023) (9 065) - (9 065)
CASCO (21 303) - (21303) (21 509) - (21509)
Railway insurance (15) - (15) (15) - (15)
Aircraft insurance 4) - 4) - - -
Marine insurance (363) 292 (71) (1 218) 1011 (207)
Cargo insurance (283) - (283) (90) - (90)
Property insurance (7 202) 201 (7 001) (6 210) 246 (5964)
Aircraft third party
liability insurance 1) - 1) - - -
Marine third party liability
insurance (26) 2 (14) - - -
General third party
liability (1 359) 82 1277) (1575) 143 (1432)
Credit insurance (394) 186 (208) (76) 31 (45)
Guarantee insurance (884) 324 (560) (128) (20) (138)
Various financial risks ) - ) (40) - (40)
Legal costs insurance 0 - 0 - - -
Travel accident insurance (1571) - (1571) (1 083) - (1 083)
CMTPL (33 414) 3398 (30 016) (34 821) 178 (34 643)
Total (79 399) 4485  (74914) (77 467) 1599 (75 868)
Gross claims paid include:
2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Paid claims (81 088) (78959)
Loss adjustment expenses* (4 720) (4293)
Recovered losses 6 409 5785
(79 399) (77 467)

*Loss adjustment expenses in the reporting period include EUR 2 568t (2016: EUR 2 331 thousand) salary and
social contributions for employees dealing with claims handling.
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(10) Outstanding claim technical reserve

Gross Reinsurer share Net
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Balance at 31 December 2015 53 251 (6932 46 319
Claims incurred during the period 81154 (1460) 79 694
Claims paid (77 467) 1599 (75868)
Changes during period 3687 139 3826
Balanceat 31 December 2016 56 938 (6793) 50145
Acquired as result of reorganization 24 855 (16127) 8 728
Claims incurred during the period 98 994 (13 649) 85 345
Claims paid (79 398) 4485 (74 913)
Changes during period 19 596 (9 164) 10 432
Balance at 31 December 2017 101 389 (32084) 69 305
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
RBNS 80010 (29977) 50033 43763 (6793) 36 970
IBNR 21379 (2107) 19 272 13175 - 13175
101 389 (32084) 69 305 56 938 (6 793) 50 145
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(11)

Net incurred claims

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Reinsurer’s Reinsurer’s
Gross sharein Gross sharein
claims claims Net claims claims claims Net claims
incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred
Personal accident
insurance (1 563) - (1 563) (1647) - (1647)
Health insurance (11 129) - (11 129) (8829) - (8829)
CASCO (23 151) - (23 151) (21685) - (21685)
Railway insurance (68) - (68) (6) - (6)
Aircraft insurance (19) 18 1) ) - )
Marine insurance (510) 473 37) (526) 306 (220)
Cargo insurance (284) 6 (278) (188) - (188)
Property insurance (9 210) 264 (8 946) (6 686) 239 (6 447)
Aircraft third party
liability insurance 2 12 14 11 - 11
Marine third party liability
insurance (62) 47 (15) - - -
General third party
liability (3 260) 775 (2 485) (2074) 121 (1953)
Credit insurance (684) 260 (424) (66) 23 (43)
Guarantee insurance (3217) 1383 (1834) (246) 91 (155)
Various financial risks 2) - ) 22 - 22
Legal costs insurance ) - 2) 12 - 12
Travel accident insurance (2 086) - (2 086) (1093) - (1093)
CMTPL (43 750) 10411  (33339) (38 151) 680  (37471)
Total (98 995) 13649 (85 346) (81 154) 1460 (79 694)
(12) Deferred client acquisition costs
EUR’000
Balance at 31 December 2015 4846
Client acquisition costs 13740
Deferred commissions allocated to the profit or loss (12 986)
Changes during period 754
Balance at 31 December 2016 5600
Acquired as result of reorganization 1537
Reclassification (187)
Client acquisition costs 17 013
Deferred commissions allocated to the profit or loss (15 561)
Changes during period 1452
Balance at 31 December 2017 8402
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Client acquisition costs 2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000

Intermediaries commissions payable 16 519 13491
Agents’ commissions payable 193 79
Other payable to intermediaries 301 170
17013 13740

(13) Administrative expenses

2017 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

Salaries and social contribution expenses 17 000 15275
Rent payments 1368 1138
Computer programs rent and maintenance 965 887
Obligatory payments* 516 350
Business related costs 517 479
Utility expenses (electricity, heating, water) 432 414
Car maintenance costs 460 434
Telecommunication costs 455 461
Advertising expenses 666 415
Other personal expenses 603 367
Presentation expenses 263 232
Legal expenses 39 67
Computer maintenance 55 51
Audit and consultant services 68 132
Cleaning expenses 118 112
Public relations expenses 97 83
Typographic costs 68 60
Other administrative expenses 318 166
24008 21123

* According to the Latvian legislation 0.20% of gross premiums in th&MMiine and 0.26% of gross premiums in
other lines of insurance should be transferred to the FCMC. Paymentsrisutedl Interests Protection Fund should be
made amounting to 1% of premiums paid by private person policy holderstiindmes of insurance.
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Administrative expenses allocated by insurance types:

Personal accident

Health insurance

CASCO

Railway insurance

Aircraft insurance

Marine insurance

Cargo insurance

Property insurance

Aircraft third party liability insurance
Marine third party liability insurance
General third party liability

Credit insurance

Guarantee insurance

Financial risks

Legal insurance

Travel insurance

CMTPL

(14) Unearned reinsurance commission income

Balance at 31 December 2015

Written commissions

Deferred commissions allocated to the profit or loss
Changes during period

Balance at 31 December 2016

Acquired as result of reorganization

Written commissions

Deferred commissions allocated to the profit or loss
Changes during period

Balance at 31 December 2017

(15) Other technical expenses

Impairment allowance for receivables from direct insura
and reinsurance operations

Expenses related to distribution of policies

Other

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
656 556
2228 2179
5691 4879
35 35
13 16
248 147
263 136
3310 2523
17 52
9 14
1037 1047
49 37
843 769
38 27
6 6
875 705
8 690 7995
24008 21123
EUR’000
665
(1457)
1455
2
663
201
(7 459)
7 755
2%
1160 ( commented [BD26]: Jabat 1 160
2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
37 (44)
48 587
62 60
147 603
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(16) Interest income

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Interest income from fixed income securities 879 1083
Interest income from deposits with credit institutions 25 60
Interest on loans - 1
904 1144
(17) Incometax expense

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Current corporate income tax (1 052) (616
Deferred tax 143 2
(909) (618)

Effective tax rate reconciliation
2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Profit before tax 8701 2550
Theoretical tax using the 15% rate 1305 383
Non-deductible expenses 264 416
Tax exempt income (647) (181)
Donations (13) -
Tax expenses 909 618

According to the double taxation treaty between Latvia anohigstncome declared by the Estonian branch
is taxable in Latvia. According to the treaty, the Company eppiie credit method in order to avoid double
taxation.

According to the double taxation treaty between Latvia atiduahia income declared by the Lithuanian
branch is taxable in Lithuania. According to the treaty, the Gompapplies the release method in order to
avoid double taxation. When determining taxable income, income generated by the Company’s branch in
Lithuania is not taken into account. Taxable incomeedsced by the Company’s income for the taxation
period that was generated in Lithuania and included in tti préoss of the Company and the taxable amount
has been increased by the amount of expenses that are ednwibt generating the above income and
included in the profit or loss of the Company.
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(18) Reinsurance cession result

2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Reinsurance premiums (23 416) (6661)
Changes in reinsurers’ share in unearned premiums reserve 1355 (151)
Reinsurers’ share in claims paid 4 485 1599
Changes in reinsurers’ share in reserve for outstanding
claims 9164 (139)
Reinsurance commissions and profit participation 7 459 1457
Change in unearned reinsurance commissions (296) 2
Total reinsurance cession result (1249 (3893)
(19) Property and equipment
Other
property and  Prepayments
Vehicles equipment for fixed assets Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Cost
31.12.2015 1498 2412 - 3910
Purchased 157 199 - 356
Disposals (100) (188) - (288)
31.12.2016 1555 2423 - 3978
Acquired as result of reorganization 133 692 - 825
Purchased 334 925 15 1274
Disposals (113) (555) - (668)
31.12.2017 1909 3485 15 5409
Accumulated depreciation
31.12.2015 (1052) (1982) - (3034)
Depreciation for the period (213) (246) - (459)
Depreciation on disposed assets 74 172 - 246
31.12.2016 (1191) (2056) - (3247)
Acquired as result of reorganization (118) (646) - (764)
Depreciation for the period (149) (349) - (498)
Depreciation on disposed assets 105 521 - 626
31.12.2017 (1353) (2530) - (3883)
Balanceat 31.12.2016 364 367 - 731
Balance at 31.12.2017 556 955 15 1526

Depreciation for the period is presented in the profit or lossrubejgreciation and amortisation caption.
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(20) Land and buildings and Investment property

(a) Land and buildings

Land and buildings

EUR’000
Cost
Deemed cost 31.12.2015 627
Deemed cost 31.12.2016 627
Acquired as result of reorganization 3654
Revaluation (21)
Deemed cost 31.12.2017 4260
Accumulated depreciation at
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2015 (178)
Depreciation for the period (31)
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2016 (209)
Acquired as result of reorganization (1 015)
Depreciation for the period (31)
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2017 (1.255)
Balanceat 31.12.2016 . 418
Balanceat 31.12.2017 3005

Depreciation for the period is presented in the profit or lossrubejgreciation and amortisation caption

The latest valuation of land and buildings and investment psopegsented in the statement of financial
position as of 31.12.2017 was carried out in October 2017 by external experts, Ober Haus Vértésanas Serviss
SIA.

All real estate objects were subject to valuation, exceptrfe, for which a sale agreement was signed in year
2017, and for which the sale transaction price was used as tialtsr The sale transaction for this object
was closed in February 2018.

All real estate objects were revalued at fair value based on thes refstiie valuation.

Fair Significant Inter-relation between significant
value, Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs and fair value
Type EUR’000 technique inputs measur ement
Buildings and land 95 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Jelgava cash flows  EUR 4.55 per i (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique  Discountrate  Nigher/ (lower).
10.70% The estimated fair value would increase,
(decrease) if discount rate was lower/
(higher)
Buildings and land 84 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Tukums cash flows EUR 3.50 per rh  (decrease) if rental income pe? mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
10.30% The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if discount rate was lower/
(higher)
Buildings and land 75 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Liepaja cash flows EUR 3.45 per th  (decrease) if rental income pe? mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lowe).
10.30% The estimated fair value would increase,
(decrease) if discount rate was lower/
(higher)
Buildings and land 84 The income Rental income  The estimated fair value would increase,

located in Daugavpils capitalization per n?in the (decrease) if rental income pef mas

approach range between higher/ (lower).
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Fair Significant Inter-relation between significant
value, Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs and fair value
Type EUR’000 technique inputs measur ement
EUR 3.50and  The estimated fair value would increase
EUR 5.00 (decrease) if discount rate was lower/
Discount rate (higher)
10.90%
Buildings and land 23 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase
located in Talsi cash flows EUR 4.50 per i (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
10.30% The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Buildings and land 3 The income Rentalincome  The estimated fair value would increase.
located in Balvi capitalization per nt in the (decrease) if rental income pef mas
approach range between higher/ (lower).
EUR 3.00 and  The estimated fair value would increase,
EUR 4.00 (decrease) if discount rate was lower/
Discount rate (higher)
10.90%
Buildings and land 20 The income Rental income  The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Rézekne capitalization per nt in the (decrease) if rental income pef mas
approach range between higher/ (lower).
EUR 4.00 and  The estimated fair value would increase,
EUR 5.00 (decrease) if discount rate was lower/
Discount rate (higher)
10.90%
Buildings and land 42 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase
located in Saldus cash flows EUR 3.31 per th  (decrease) if rental income per mv was
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
11.00% The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if discount rate was lower/
(higher)
Buildings and land 32 Discounted Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase
located in Jurmala cash flows EUR 7.05 per rh (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
11.00% The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Building and land 318 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Riga cash flows EUR 8.62 per m (decrease) if rental income pe? mas
technique Discount rate 9% higher/ (lower).
The estimated fair value would increase
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Building and land 2275 Discounted Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Riga cash flows EUR 9.16 per h (decrease) if rental income pe? mas
technique Discount rate 9% higher/ (lower).
The estimated fair value would increase,
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Building and land 115 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase,
located in Daugavpils cash flows EUR 2.48 per M (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique higher/ (lower).
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Fair Significant Inter-relation between significant
value, Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs and fair value
Type EUR’000 technique inputs measur ement
Discount rate The estimated fair value would increase
11% (decrease) if discount rate was lower

(higher)

*Discounted cash flows technique is a model based on discounted cash flows frormcental. i

The Company has assessed that there are no significant changgsficast unobservable inputs as at
31 December 2017 in comparison to date when the land and buildiegs acquiredas a result of
Reorganization process; therefore, no comparative analysis is made.

(b) Investment property

Total asat 31.12.2015

Total asat 31.12.2016
Acquired as result of reorganization
Depreciation for the period

Total asat 31.12.2017

Investment
property
EUR’000
99

99

354

()

446

Investment property comprises a number of commercial propertieseéHataed to third parties.
Rental income and operating expenses are recognized in the profit endesOther income.
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The fair value measurement for investment property of EURHMBgI&and has been categorised as a Level 3
in the fair value hierarchy. The following table shows the valuaéohnique used in measuring the fair value

of investment property, as well as the significant unobservable inpets

Fair Significant Inter-relation between significant
value, Valuation unobservable unobservableinputs and fair value
Type EUR’000 technique inputs measur ement
Buildings and land 83 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase;
located in Tukums cash flows EUR 3.50 per rh (decrease) if rental income pef mias
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
10.30% The estimated fair value would increase)
(decrease) if discount rate was lower/
(higher)
Buildings and land 19 Discounted  Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase;
located in Talsi cash flows EUR 4.50 per th (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
10.30% The estimated fair value would increasei
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Buildings and land 109 Discounted Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase;
located in Ventspils cash flows EUR 4.30 per rh (decrease) if rental income pef mas
technique Discount rate higher/ (lower).
11% The estimated fair value would increase)
(decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Buildings located in 269 Theincome Rental income of The estimated fair value would increase;
Tallinn capitalization EUR 10 perrd  (decrease) if rental income pef mas
and sales Discount rate higher/ (lower).
comparison  10% The estimated fair value would increases
approach (decrease) if discount rate was lower
(higher)
Buildings and land 140  Acquired
located in Daugavpils purchase/
selling
ageement
Land located in Marciena 23 The sales Ability to have  The estimated fair value would increasei
parish comparison  appropriate (decrease) if comparable property
approach comparable transaction prices increase/ (decrease).
property
transactions

The Company has assessed that there are no significant changgsficast unobservable inputs as at

31 December 2017 in comparison to date when the investment propertyogaged as a result of
Reorganization process; therefore, no comparative analysis is made.

(21) Intangible assets

Cost

Cost 31.12.2015

Purchased

Disposals

Cost 31.12.2016

Acquired as result of reorganization
Purchased

Disposals

Cost 31.12.2017

Software
EUR’000

2950
925
@)
3868
310
673
(274)
4577
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Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated depreciation 31.12.2015
Amortisation for the period
Amortisation on disposed assets
Accumulated depreciation 31.12.2016
Acquired as result of reorganization
Amortisation for the period
Amortisation on disposed assets
Accumulated depreciation 31.12.2017

Balance at 31.12.2016
Balanceat 31.12.2017

(1667)
(566)
7

(2226)

(263)

(579

_ 265
__ (2800
1642

1777

Amortisation for the period is presented in the profit or loeser Depreciation and amortisation caption.

(22) Investmentsat fair value

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1825 76 210
Available-for-sale instruments 148 805 5026
Held-to-maturity instruments 1781 -
152 411 81 236
Fixed income securities 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000

Purchasecost Fair value Purchasecost Fair value

Debt securities issued or guaranteed by central

governments or municipalities 120512 120 050 74 396 79 168

Debt securities and other securities with fixed incor
which are listed in a regulated market 26 222 26 387 2021 2 068
146 734 146 437 76 417 81 236
Investment portfolio of fixed income securities by geographic 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
split: EUR’000 EUR’000
Latvia, Lithuania 76 686 75 325
Poland 10 401 1453
Other European Union countries 59 350 4 458
146 437 81 236

(23) Depositswith banks

Investment maturity structure: 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
With original maturity from 6 to 12 months 3303 1064
With original maturity from 1 to 5 years - 293
3303 1357
Investment structure by geographical split: 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Latvia 303 950
Lithuania 3000 407
3303 1357
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(24) Receivablesfrom direct insurance activities

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Acquired as result of reorganization (policy holders) 1747 -
Acquired as result of reorganization (intermediaries) 764 -
Due from policy holders 27 449 18 745
Due from intermediaries 1063 1556
Impairment allowance for bad debtors (513) (307)
Acquired as result of reorganization (impairment allowance) (269 -
30241 19994
Total allowance
Allowance for Allowance for for insurance
policy holders intermediaries debtors
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Allowance as at 31.12.2015 (133 (30) (163)
Recovered debts 29 17 46
Impairment loss charge (98) (92) (190)
Allowance as at 31.12.2016 (202) (105) (307)
Acquired as result of reorganization (269) - (269)
Recovered debts 4 - 4
Impairment loss charge (180) (31) (211)
Allowance as at 31.12.2017 (647) (136) (783)
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Acquired as result of reorganization 764 -
Other intermediaries 1063 1556
Allowances for doubtful debts (136) (105)
Intermediaries 1691 1451
Acquired as result of reorganization 1747
Overdue receivables 3510
More than 3 months 326 153
Less than 3 months 3184 1682
Outstanding receivables not yet due 23939 16 910
Allowances for doubtful debts (646) (202)
Policyholders 28 550 18543
Total direct insurance debtors 30241 19994
(25) Other receivables
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Non-financial assets
Advance payments 117 225
Tax prepayments 46 34
Total non-financial assets 163 259
Financial assets
Acquired as result of reorganization 551 -
Receivables for claims handling services provided 148 72
Other debtors 176 401
Impairment allowance (305) (313)
Total financial assets 570 160
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733 419

Gross

__ EUR000

Allowance as at 31 December 2015 (395)
Written off . 82
Allowance as at 31 December 2016 (313)
Written off 8
Allowance as at 31 December 2017 (305)

(26) Cash and cash equivalents

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

Cash on hand 5 4
Current accounts with credit institutions 33 %7 42 475
Cash and cash equivalents 33562 42 479
Cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in the statement of cash flows 33562 42479

Credit institutions:

Latvian credit institutions 15 048 22 061
Lithuanian credit institutions 11 103 17 459
Estonian credit institutions 2389 2955
Austrian credit institutions 5001 -
Other credit institutions 16 -
33557 42 475

Rated from Aa3/AA- to Aal/AA+ 1 40 965
Rated A3/A- to A1/A+ 5063 13
Rated from B3/Bto Bal/BB+ 2383 1486
Not rated 26 110 11
33557 42 475

(27) Obligatory payments disclosed in statement of cash flows

Payments made to: 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Latvian Transport Insurance Bureau 442 357
Estonian and Lithuanian Transport Insurance Bureaus 873 1221
FCMC commission 370 334
Estonian and Lithuanian insurance supervisory institutions 79 64
1764 1976

(28) Capital and reserves
Share capital
The authorized and issued share capital of the Company ae@&iniber 2017s EUR 41609 D0 (2016:

29000000) comprised of 41694 ordinary shares and is fully paid. Nominal value of oreehvas EUR
100.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receiveletids as declared and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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Dividends
2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Dividends declared 966 916
Dividends paid 966 916
Dividends declared per share 0.0033 0.0031¢€
Dividends paid per share 0.0033¢ 0.0031¢

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to revaluation on propedyequipment used by the Company for its own
activities, revaluation of available-for-sale instruments, neeéérred tax.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

Acquired as result of reorganization 147 -
Land and buildings revaluation reserves 371 451
Deferred tax liabilities at 15% - (68)
Other investment revaluation reserves 957 12)
1475 371

EUR’000

Balance at 31 December 2015 383
Changes of revaluation reserves (12)
Balance at 31 December 2016 371
Acquired as result of reorganization 147
Changes of revaluation reserves 957
Balance at 31 December 2017 1475

(29) Deferred tax assetd (liabilities)

Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asselialgilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise tiefezted tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December
2016 and 2017. These deferred tax assets have been recognised imtresal Statements.

2017 2016
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) attributable to: EUR’000 EUR’000
Latvia - (92)
Lithuania 181 130

Movement in temporary differencesduring theyear ended 31 December 2017
Net balance 31 December 2017
Net balance  Recognised in 31 December Deferred Deferred

000 EUR 1January 2017 profit or loss 2017 taxasset  taxliability
Property and equipment (188 188 - - -
Provisions 226 (45) 181 181 -
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
befor e set-off 38 143 181 181 -
Set off of tax - -
Net deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) 181 -
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(30) Taxesand social contributions
Balance at Acquiredas  Calculated in Paid in
31.12.2016 result of reporting reporting Balance at
Tax type reorganization period period Reclassificated 31.12.2017
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Social contributions 309 - 5495 (5114) (274) 416
Personal income tax 156 - 2370 (2 299) - 227
Value added tax (31) 1 531 (512) - (11)
Real estate tax 3 - 3 ) - 4
Risk Duty - - 30 27) - 3
Other taxes ?3) - 28 (29) - 4)
CIT in Latvia (253) - 52 (126) 274 (53)
CIT in Lithuania (249) - 1001 (553) - 199
Total (68) 1 9510 (8662) - 781
Balance at Balance at
31.12.2016 31.12.2017
EUR’000 EUR’000
Including:
Prepaid corporate income tax (502) (59
Other tax prepayment, see note 2t (34) (46)
Other tax liabilities 468 881
Tax Calculated Paid Tax
Tax payable receivable inreporting inreporting Tax payable receivable
31.12.2016 31.12.2016 period period 31.12.2017 31.12.2017
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Latvia 386 (240) 4197 (3 847) 553 (57)
Lithuania 34 (296) 4879 (4 400) 260 (43)
Estonia 48 - 434 (415) 68 0
Total 468 (536) 9510 (8 662) 881 (100)
(31) Reinsurancecreditors
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Acquired as result of reorganization 1912 -
Reinsurance companies 1849 1060
Reinsurance brokers 434 514
4195 1574
Reinsurance creditor s by geographic split:
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
European Union member countries 4166 1477
North America 29 10
Commonwealth of Independent States, Central Asia - 87
4195 1574
(32) Other creditors
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000

Non-financial liabilities
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Acquired as result of reorganization 308 -
Due to the Transport Insurance Bureau 91 75
Due to employees (remuneration) 486 271
Due to the Financial Capital and Market Commission, Latvia 108 79
Total non-financial liabilities 993 425

Financial liabilities

Financial pledge 3622 3625
Other creditors 925 1254
Total financial liabilities 4547 4879

5540 5304

(33) Provisionsand accrued liabilities

Provisions

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Acquired as result of reorganization 96 -
Provision for staff bonuses 1274 871
Other provisions 50 -
1420 871
Gross
EUR’000
Provisionsasat 31 December 2015 983
Paid (453)
Increase of provisions 1123
Reclassification (782)
Provisions as at 31 December 2016 871
Acquired as result of reorganization 96
Paid (807)
Increase of provisions 1260
Provisions as at 31 December 2017 1420

Accrued liabilities
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Accruals for unused employee vacations 936 782
Accrued liabilities 3051 2098
3987 23880

(34) Number of employees and information on branches

At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016

Employees 989 961
Insurance agents 162 130
1151 1091

Insurance agents are persons who pursue insurance mediati@half of and in the interests of only one
insurance company, but are not employees of the Company.

Number of employees as at end of the period:
At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016

Latvia 480 471
Branch in Lithuania 465 442
Branch in Estonia 44 48

74




BTABALTIC INSURANCE COMPANY AAS ANNUAL REPORT FORHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

989 961

Number of branches and sales points:
At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016

Customer service centres abroad 109 102
Customer service centres in Latvia 6 8
Customer business centres in Latvia 22 21
Customer regional centres in Latvia 2 2
Sales points 23 24

(35) Personnel expenses

2017 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

Remuneration 15 269 13 863
Social contribution expenses 4 299 3743
19568 17 606
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2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Personnel expenses (included in administrative expenses i
note 13) 17 000 15 275
Personnel expenses (included in loss adjustment expenses
note 9) 2 568 2331
19 568 17 606

(36) Information on the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Council

2017 2016

EUR’000 EUR’000

Supervisory Council 66 83
Board of Directors 808 481
Social contribution expenses 232 133
1106 697

Remuneration to the Board and Council members includes remuneratibeifatitect responsibilities.

(37) Related parties

Control relationships

VIENNA INSURANCE GROUP AG Wiener Versicherung Gruppe (VI€)the largest shareholder of the
Company, representing 90.83% of the share capital of the CompBalgja Insurance SE is minority

shareholder of the Company representing 9.17% of the shaital aafpthe Company with no control
relationships in the Company.

Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are conducted on arm’s length bases.

The Company has the following related party transactions ebiid/creditors balances as at 31 December
2017 and 2016:

Transactionswith related parties: 2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000

Compensa Life insurance SE Lietuvos filiale

Contributions to Life Insurance 3 3

Contributions to Health Insurance 66

Compensa Vienna Insurance Group UADB (Lithuania)

Received regress - 23

Asigurarerea Romaneasca S.A. - Asirom

Received regress - 21

Janis Lucauss

Income from insurance premiums 1 1

Evija Matveja

Income from insurance premiums 1 1

Paid claims - 1
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31.12.2017 31.12.2016

EUR’000 EUR’000
Other receivables
Compensa Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen S.A. Vienna Insurance Group 006216959 - 1
Compensa TU S.A. Vienna Insurance Group 012806455 - 1
Compensa Vienna Insurance Group, UADB EESTI filiaal 12970620 - 1
- 3
Other payables
VIENNA INSURANCE GROUP AG WIENER VERSICHERUNG GRUPPE 23748 -
VIG RE zajist’ovna a.s. - 11
23748 11
(38) Remaining maturities of insurance liabilities
2017 2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Gross  Reinsu- Net Gross  Reinsu- Net
liabilities rance liabilities liabilities rance liabilities
Unearned premium and unexpired ris
technical reserves 84 029 (19 164) 64 865 56 707 (2222) 54 485
Outstanding claim technical reserves 101 389 (32 084) 69 305 56938 (6793) 50 145
Total 185418 (51 248) 134170 113645  (9015) 104630 ( commented [BD35]: Jabi -49 141
[ Commented [IK36R35]: Izlabots, tabula nebija apdeitota
Up to 1 year 149150 (51 248) 97902 99919 (9015) 90 904
1-5 years 12 247 - 12 247 9 049 - 9 049
Over 5 years 24021 - 24021 2000 - 2000
No fixed maturity - - - 2677 - 2677
(39) Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
EUR’000 EUR’000
Within one year 1053 470
From 1 to 5 years 2847 2399
More than 5 years 533 533
4433 3402

(40) Contingent liabilities and commitments

General claims

In the normal course of the business the Company receivessdiam policyholders. Management has
reviewed such claims and believes that no material liagsilitvill arise from these cases other than already
provided for.

Within the scope of the reorganisation process the Compakpweo InterRisk Vienna Insurance Group AAS
cases No. A420161517, Nr.A420251617, Nr.1A68026717, which are in the administ@rte where
InterRisk Vienna Insurance Group AAS had the status of the applicane Whsera request made to the court
to cancel decisions by the CEO of State Revenue Service on immisiggtions on InterRisk Vienna
Insurance Group AAS to make payments to the state budget in accordancesteithscsuretyship insurance
contracts within court cases No. A420161517, Nr.A420251617. Insurance ingleamilready been paid to
the State Revenue Service. There is a request within addivistcase No. 1A68026717 to cancel the
decision by State Data Inspection regarding the penalty fee amounkiRtd 300.
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(41) Fair valueof financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The table below analyses financial instruments measufait e&lue at the end of the reporting period, by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measuremeatedgorised.

31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial assets

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1825 - - 1825
Available-for-sale instruments 144 806 - 3999 148 805
Held-to-maturity instruments 1781 - - 1781
148 412 - 3999 152 411
31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 _ EUR’000

Financial assets

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 76 210 - - 76 210
Available-for-sale instruments 5026 - - 5026
81 236 - - 81 236

In the reporting period, financial instruments were not trarexddénto or out of Level 3.

Total gains or losses for the period in the above table asergesl in the statement of comprehensive income
as follows:

31 December 2017 Financial instruments at
fair value Total
EUR’000 EUR’000

Total gainsand lossesincluded in profit or loss:
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair va

through profit or loss 55 55
Net realised gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value 714 714
Interest income 879 879
Total gainsand lossesincluded in other comprehensive
income:
Available-for-sale financial assetsnet change in fair value 957 957
31 December 2016 Financial instruments at
fair value Total
EUR’000 EUR’000

Total gainsand lossesincluded in profit or loss:
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair va

through profit or loss (91) (91)
Net realised gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss 1) 1)
Interest income 1083 1083
Total gainsand lossesincluded in other comprehensive

income:

Available-for-sale financial assetsnet change in fair value (12) 12)
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(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below analyses the fair values of financial instrismeitmeasured at fair value, by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised:

31 December 2017 Total carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair values amount

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial assets

Cash - - - 33562 33562

Deposits with banks - - - 3303 3303

Receivables from direct insurance

activities - - - 30241 30241

Receivables from reinsurance

activitieg - - - 1029 1029

Other receivablés - - - 733 733

Financial liabilities

Direct insurance creditots - - - 8075 8075

Reinsurance creditots - - - 4195 4195

Other creditors - - - 5540 5540

31 December 2016 Total carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair values amount

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial assets

Cash - - - 42 479 42 479

Deposits with banks - - 1357 - 1357

Receivables from direct insurance

activities’ - - - 19 994 19 994

Receivables from reinsurance

activities - - - 407 407

Other receivablés - - - 419 419

Financial liabilities

Direct insurance creditots - - - 4982 4982

Reinsurance creditots - - - 1574 1574

Other creditor¥ - - - 5304 5304

1 Deposits with banks are highly liquid assets; thus their carrying arappraximates the fair value.

2 Receivables from direct insurance and Reinsurance activities are shdibéercial assets whose carrying amount approximates the
fair value.

3 The item includes short term receivables whose carrying amount apptesithe fair value.

4 Direct insurance and Reinsurance creditors are short term financial liabilities whgsegcamount approximates the fair value.

5 The item includes short term payables whose carrying amount approxinedtdaitivalue.

6 Deposits with banks are highly liquid assets; thus their carrying arappraximates the fair value.

7 Receivables from direct insurance and Reinsurance activities are shdihé&roial assets whose carrying amount approximates the
fair value.

8 The item includes short term receivables whose carrying amount apgtes the fair value.

9 Direct insurance and Reinsurance creditors are short term financial liabilities waingseg amount approximates the fair value.

10 The item includes short term payables whose carrying amount approxinedtéaitivalue.
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(42) Subsequent events

As of the last day of the reporting period until the ddtsigning these financial statements there have been
no events requiring adjustment of or disclosure in the finastaggdments or notes thereto.

80




Aruande digitaalallkirjad
Aruande |8petamise kuupé&ev on: 25.03.2018

AAS BTA Baltic Insurance Company Eesti filiaal (registrikood: 11223507) 01.01.2017 - 31.12.2017 majandusaasta aruande andmete
Bigsust on elektrooniliselt kinnitanud:

Allkirjastaja nimi Allkirjastaja roll Allkirja andmise aeg

OSKARS HARTMANIS Filiaali juhataja 13.12.2018



Sidevahendid
Liik Sisu
Telefon +371 9634715

E-posti aadress info@bta.ee



